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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The director presents his strategic report for Simplicity Marketing Limited {the “Company”) and its subsidiaries {the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 Decermnber 2021.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS
Simpheity Marketing Limited, trading as "Flashtalkng®, is an independent ad serving, measuring and technoiogy company, providing
best.in-class digital advertsing products. service and support for online advertisers, key media buying and creative agencies.

Flashtaiking's products facititate the management, delivery and measuring of all forms of digital adverusing across desktop, tablet
and mobile. Core aspects include display (including standard ads, dynarnic, nch media, video, HTML 5 and mobile), search, socia:
and affifiates,

Flashta'king serves bittions of ad impressions throughout US. European and international markets for the leading marketers and
their advertising agency partners. Regional offices are iocated in London, Leeds, Connecticut, Cologne, Peiah Tikva and Sydney,

RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE
The results for the Group, as set out on pages 11 to 64, show a loss before tax of £11,584,742 {2020: profit of £8,859,328). The total
shareholders’ funds of the Group is £73,022,354 {2020: shareholders’ deficit of £9,848,196).

The operating loss 11 2021 is a direct resuit of the exceptional costs incurred dureng the year relating to the acquisition by Mediaocean
LLC and the business combination with Protected Media Limited {Israel) {see note 22 for further details). The trading performance
of the Group during 2021 has been successful. The Group contnued to demonstrate growth, with revenues growing year-on-year
whilst protecting the operating margin. Management belfieves the Group is well positioned to grow further in the future by utibsing
its experience and technology to deliver high quality services to its growing custamer base.

Flash Topco Limted {the group parent company) undectook two share buy-back transactions in February and March 2020, Owing te
a faliure by a third party to make certain Compan-es House filings in connection with steps related to the buy-back transact.ons,
Flash Topco Limsted had insuffickent distributable reserves at the point at wh.ch the buy-back transactions were undertaken and
they were, therefore, ineffective. Dividends declared were conditional upon the aforementioned filings having taken effect. As 2
result of foreign exchange driven losses having been mcurred by Simplicity Marketing Limed between the date of the dividend
being declared and the filng date, part of the distribution paid by Simplicity Marketng Limited to Flash Bidco Limited was deemed
unlawful.

As Is conventiona; in this type of situatan, Flash Topco Limited applied to the Court for an order sanctioning a reduction of capital
cancell:ng the A Qrdinary Shares and B1 Ord:nary Shares which were the subject of the buy-back transactions on the basis that any
habiary whech might have existed an the part of sellers to repay the sums received by them in connection with the buy-back
transactions be released. The Court Order was granted on the 9th of March 2021 and registered at Companies House an the 17th
of March 2021, at which point the buy-back transactions were formally cancelled.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Groug's performance is impacted by the general economic <limate in the USA, UX, mainland Europe and Austrafia. This risk (s
managed by ensur:ng that the Group uperates across a range of markets with a broad client base.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS ("KPIs")

Given the straightforward nature of the businessas, the Group's director s of the opimion that analysis using KPls is nat necessary
for an understanding of the development. performance or position of the businesses. Standard financial statements (Income
Statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Staterment) are sufficient to provide information about the financial position,
performance and changes in financial positton of the businesses that s useful to a wide range of stakeholiders.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The digital advertising industry cont:nues 1o mature and evolve, with advertisers continuing to place increasing emphasis on owning
the data that they use to recognze and communicate with their consumers. The increased focus on data ownership. and the
unwillingness of walled gardens to provide ownership of or access to data, provides substantial momentum for the Company as the
independent alternative to walled gardens |.ke Google, Facebook, or Amazon.

Addinonally, Gocgle’s announcement in respect to ending support for 3rd party tookies in Chrome from 2024 has created further
interest In the Company’s offerng. As the onlyindependent ad server not refiant on cookies, management believes that the Company
will be well positioned to capture share among advertisers who require granular insight Into advertising delivery and performance.

The Campany s alsa seeing an increase «n clients shifting towards purchasing full-stack offerings that ¢an meet all needs in a single
package, rather than buying multiple "point solutions” that each serve a specific use. with the Company having invested substantially
over the past five years In expand:ng its product set, management beheves that this shift in buying pattern results is a competitive
advantage. as the Company now has competitive products across DCO, primary ad serving, video, identity, advanced analytics, and
verification
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED}

In August 2021, Flashtalking was acquired by Mediaocean LLC, a long standing and successful AdTech company. The acquisition
came at a critical inflection point for the industry, as marketers moved towards maore open and Interoperable solutions. Together,
the combined entities have established the leading independent technology platform for omnichannel advertising The
complermentary technologies of the two campanies have enabled customers to benefit fram comprehensive and future-forward
solutions for global strategic planning. omnichannel media management and closed ecosystems optimisation.

STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING (SECR)
Large organlsations are now cbliged to report publicly on their energy use and carbon emissions.  Details of this is disclosed in the
financial staterents of Flash Topco Limited, the parent company of Simplicity Market:ng Limited.

PIRFCTOR'S SECTION 172 STATEMENT
The Director of the company must act in accordance with a set of general dutes, as deta-led in section 172 of the UK Companies Act
2006, surnmarised as follows:

‘Adirector of a company must act in the way they consider. in good faith, would be most likely to promote the sucgess of the company
for the benefit of its sharehglders as a whole and, in doing so have regard {amongst other matters) to:

s the Iikely consequences of any decisions in the long term;

» the interest of the company’s employees;

« the nead to foster the company's business relationships with suppl.ers, custemers and others;

«  the impact of the company’s operations on the community and environment;

« the desirabifity of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and

= the need to act fairly as between the shareholders of the company.’

The director fulfils these duties as follows:

Risk management

The Company has a leng-term strategic plan that effecavely identfies, evaluates and mitigates the risks which the Company faces,
ensuring they are sufficiently considered and. if applicable, hedged against for the future. The director will invariably delegate day-
to-day management and decision making to executive management, but wil ensure that management is acting in accordance with
the strategy and plans agreed by the board.

The board racognises that employees are central to the long-term success of the Company. The Company systematically provides
employees with infermation en matters of concern to them, consulting them or their representatives regularly, so that their views
can be taken into account when making decisions that are likely to affect the:r interests. Employee involvement in the Company is
encouraged, as achieving a common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the
Company plays a major role in maintaining its prosperity. The Company encourages the involvement of employees by means of
regular meetings to keep them informed of the Companys progress. The Company is committed to employment policies, which
follow best practice, based on equal oppartunities for all employees, irrespective of sex, race, colour, disability or sexual orientation.

The d:rector appreciates the importance of fostering business relattonships with key stakehoders, such as customers and suppliers,
and fotus on the maintenance and growth of these relationships in thesr decision-mak:ng and strategik planning. The Company
employs dedicated relationship managers to foster these relationships which also ensures the board has a high degree of visibility
to take stakeholder considerations into account,

Cormunity and environsment
The Company's approach is to use its position of strength to ensure it »s an asset (o the communities and people with which it
interacts. The board ensures significant consideration is given to the impact of the Company's operations on the community and
environment in their decision-making. The Company strives (o create positive change in reducing the envirenmental impact of its
businesses and to meet the highest level of health and safety and environmental standards, whilst maintaining effective and
continuing butiness practices.

The board recognises the importance of regular and open dialogue with the shareho’ders and the need to ensure the strategy and
goals of the Company are effectively communicated to them Feedback on these plans and objectives is welcomed by the director
and major business decisions are made closely and with the approval of the shareholders.
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

signed

Mr |. Nardone
Company director

Approved by the director on 16 Cecember 2022
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPQORT
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The director presents hs report and the audited finanaal statements of the Group and Company for the year ended
31 Dacember 2021.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The loss for the financial year amounted to £6,233,923 (2020 profit of £5,650,094), During the year a dividend of £1,886,723 was

paid to Flash Bidco Limited (2020; £48,777,618),

The net assets position at the year end was driven by the capital contr:bution from Mediaccean LLC and the fair value uplift on
Investments.

GOING CONCERN

The director is reguired o pirepare the fnantia! statements on the going concern basis, unless it is snappropriate (o presume
Simplicity Marketing Limited and its subsidiaries wil: continue in business. The Group s in a positive net assets position, has a positive
cash balance at the halance sheet date and expects positive cashfiow in the 12 months. Management has prepared cash flow
forecasts through to December 2023 that show the Group will generate positive cash Aliow over this period. These forecasts have
been stress tested toinclude a severe but plausible downside scenario, even under these conditions the Group remains able to fund
ongoing trading liquidity requirements fromwithin existing cash rescurces for a period of at feast 12 months from the date of signing
the financial statements. The d:rector therefore has no concerns with regards to the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

As disclosed in Note 1, the Group was acquired by Mediaocean LLC in August 2021 and now forms part of an enlarged group.
OceanKey (U.5.) l Corp. ("OceanKey") was formed on August 5, 2021, as a US limited liability company to facilitate the acquisition of
Mediaocean LLC. OceanKey and Mediaocean LLC were acquired by funds owned by CVC Capital Partners and TA Associates which
are registared in the United States of Amenica. OceanKey entered into a Credit Agreement with a financial institution that includes a
first and second lien term note payable and a revolving line of credit. These borrowings are subject 1o certain covenants and are
secured by substantially all of the assets of OceanKey and its subsidiaries which include the Group. There ara currently no borrowings
against the revolving line of credit, and OceanKey Is currently in compliance with all of its covenants.

The director has concluded that the enlarged Group is able to continue as a going concern due to cash on-hand, forecast ¢ash
generated from operations, and the revoMing hine of credit for a period of at feast 12 months from the date of signing the financial
statements and that the risk of the Group's assets being called as security is remote

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OB)JECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group's aperations expose It to a variety of financlal risks that Indlude foreign exchange nisk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
risk. The Graup has a nsk management programme in place that seeks to imit the adverse effect on the financial performance of

the Group.

Given the size of the Group, the director has not delegated the responsibrlity of monitoring financial risk management to a sub
committee of the board. The policies set by the director are implemented by the Group's finance department.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group has assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, mainly US Dotlar, Euro, and Australan Dollar. The Group
does not use derivative finandcial instruments 10 manage the risk of fluctuating exchange rates, so no hedge accounting 1s appited.
The Group has in place a foreign exchange policy and wiil recansider the appropriateness of this policy should the Group's operat.ons
change in size or nature.

CREDIT RISK

The Group has no significant concentration of cred risk. Cash and cash equivalents are deposited within high-credit quality finanaial
institutions and trade debtors are due principally from wel-established customers [n spite of the well-establshed customer base,
there is still a risk as the custemer may default on the payrent of thelr debts and the Group mirigates this nsk by performing credit
risk assessments on all of its potential customers, prior to the sale being made.

LIQUIDITY RISK
The Greup actively manages its finances to ensure that it has sufficient avaifable funds for its operations.

INTEREST RISK

The Group has both interest-bearing assets, which are generatly held at Foating rates, and interest-bearing |:abilibes, which are
generally held at fixed rates. The Group monitors its portfolio of interest-bearing assets and liabilities and their financial impact, The
Group will reconsider the appropriate structure cf s portfolin shoufd the Group's operations change in size or nature.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED  -5-
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SIMPLICITY MARKEYING LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPORT
YEAR ENDGED 31 DECEMBER 2021

DIRECTORS
The directgrs who served the Company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements
were:

Mr |, Meeks (Resigned on 31% August 2021)
Mr |. Seigler (Resigned on 3 1% August 2021]
Mr |, Nardone

STRATEGIC REPORT
Please refer to the Strategic Report on pages 2to 4,

FUTURE DEVELGPMENTS

The Group continues to invest in the developmant of staff and new technology in arder to position the Company for future growth.
The Company intends to continue to expand its product capabilities, with investments being made in areas seen as offering strategic
impartance and growth. Management believes that there are variaus growth opportunities in the market, bath organic and through
acquisition s, which they will continue to explore in the year ahead.

In August 2021, Medaocean LLC complated the acquisiion of all of the issued share capital of Flash Topco Umited As a result of
this acquisitior, the new ultimate parent campany of the Group is Oceankey {U.5.) 1l Corp., a limited hability company in the United
States of America. Mediaocean LLC are a successful AdTech company providing a platform for omnichannel advertising, with mare
than $200 billion in annuahsed media spend managed through their platfarm.

EMPLOYMENT OF DISABLED PERSONS

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the respective aptitudes and abilibies
of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort ks made te ensure that their
employment with the Group continues and the appropriate training is arranged. {tis the policy of the Group that the training, career
development and promaotion of a disabled person should, as far as possible, be identical to that of a person wha does not suffer
from a disabihty, The Group did not employ any disabled persons during the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

Consuitation with employees or their managers has continued at allfevels, with the aim of ensuring that views are taken inta account
when decisions are made that are likely to affect their interests. All employees are aware of the objectives, targets and performance
of their department and of financial performance of the Group as a whole and are rewarded accarding to the results of both throygh
an annuail bonus scheme. Communication with all employees continues through emait, internal open meetings, briefing groups and
video conferencing,

STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The director is responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Campany law requires the director to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that [aw the director has prepared
the Group and the Company financial statements in accaordance with UX-adopted international accounting standgards

Under Company law, a director must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the prafit orloss of the Group far that period. In preparing the fimanciai
statements, the director is required to:

«  select suitable accounting policies and then appiy them cansistently;

«  state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

«  make judgerents and accaunting estimates that are reasanable and prudent, and

. prepare the financial statements on the going cancern basis unfess it is inappropriate (o presume that the Group and
Cormpany will continue in business.

The director is responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hente for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED .
Company number 04339257



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPORT
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The diractor is also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group's and
Cornpany's transactions and disclese wih reasonable accuracy at any time the financlal position of the Group and Company and
enable thern to ensure that the financia’ statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

DIRECTOR'S CONFIRMATIONS
In the case of each director in office at the date the director's report is approved:

s sc far as the directar 1s aware, there is no relevant audt information of wh:ch the Group's and Company's auditors are
unaware; and

« they have taken ali the steps that they ought to have taken as a director :n order to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Group’s and Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

DIRECTOR'S INDEMNITY

As permitied by the Articles of Associaton, the director has the benefit of an indemnity, which is a qualifying third-party indemnity
as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indernimity was in force throughout the tenure of each director during the
last financial year and is currently in force. The Company also purchased and maintained throughout the financial year Directors
and Officers liability insurance in respect of itself and its director

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to cantinue in office and a resolution concerning their
re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirm that.
. so far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit;nformation of which the Company's auditors are unaware; and

. each director has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

The financial statements on pages 11 to 64 were approved by the Director on 16 Decemnber 2022,

Registered office:
Suite 1
7*Floor
50 Broadway
London
Sigred
, .
[
Mr |, Nardone

16 December 2022
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Oplnion

in our opinign. Sunplicity Marketing Limited's group financial statements and Company financial statements {the “financial
statemnents’).

« give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of the group's loss
and the Group's and Company's cash flows for the year then ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted internat-onai accounting standards, and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Cormpanies Act 2076.

We have augted the financial statements, included within the financial statements (the *annual Report”), which comprise: the
consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2021; the cansoldated income statement, the consol:dated statement
of comprehensive incame, the consolidated and Company statements of cash flows and the consotidated and Company statements
of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, winch inciude a descript:on of the ssignificant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("1SAs (UK}) and applicable faw, Our
responsibilites under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsib.|ites for the audit of the financ al statements section
of our report We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opimon.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statermnents :n the UK, which includes the FRC Ethical Standard, and we have fu:filled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed. we have not identified any materal uncertanties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast signif.cant doubt on the Group’s and the Company's abibty to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financia! statements are autharised for 1ssue.

{n auditing the financial staternents, we have concluded that the director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statemnents 1s appropr.ate.

However, because not all future events or conditions ¢an be predicted, this conclus:on is not a guarantee as to the Group's and the
Company's ability to cantinue as a going concern.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the director with respect to going concern are describred in the relevant sections of
this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information compnises alt of the information in the Annuaf Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’
repart thereon. The director is respons:ble for the other informat:on, Qur opinion on the financal statements does not cover the
ather information and, accordingly, we do nat express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise exphcity stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and. in doing so. consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the finarcial statements or our knowledge obtained m the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financal statements or a material
misstatementof the other information, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a matertal misstatement
of this other infarmation, we are required to repoit that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Director’s Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions and
ratters as described below.

Strategic Report and Director’s Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Director's
Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and thelr environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Director's Repart.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibifity of the director for the financiol stotements

As explained more fully in the statement of director's responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the director is responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view. The director is also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary tc enable the preparaton
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the director is responsible far assessing the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the director either intends tg liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the udit of the finaniciol statements

QOur objectives are (0 obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a
high level of assurance, but s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, Individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

rregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-cormpliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
respensibilities, outlined above, to detect materia! misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which
aur procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and
regulations related to adherence to data protection requirements in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates and holds dats,
and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered
those taws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006 and tax legislation.
Wwe evaluated management’s incentives and opporturities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements {including the risk
of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to pasting inappropriate journal entries to manipulate
financial resuits and management biag in accounting estimates and [udgements.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
HNDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Audit proredures performed by the engagement team inciuded:

« Discussions with management ncluding consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations and fraud;

» Addressing the risk of management override of internat controls, including tesung of journal entries {in particular, journal entries
posted with an unusual account cormbination);

«  Testing of assumptions and judgements made by management in making significant accounting 2stimates; and

s Reviewing financial statement disciosures and testing to supporting documentation,

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions refiected in the financial statements,
Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve defiberate concealment by. for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentatians, or thraugh coliusian.

A further deseription of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 15 located on the FRC's website at:
www.fre.org.ux/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Campany's members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, i3 giving these opinions, accept or assurme
responsibility for any other purpase or to any other person 10 whom this report Is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prioy consent in writing.

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Cornpames Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, In cur opimson:

+ we have not cbtained all tha snformation and explanations we reguire foc our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
fram branches not visted by us; or

+ cerain disciosures of director's remuneration speafied by law are not made; or

+ the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising fram this responsibility.

Dawvid Braddy {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Aud.tors
London

16 December 2022
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Note R £

Revenue i8 66,767,908 62,391,635
Cast of Sales 19 {8,950411) {7,559,976)
Gross Profit 57,817,497 54,831,659
Selling and marketing costs X (8,161,552) (6,725,232)
Administrative expenses 19 {35.310311) (12,794,339)
Technical support and development 19 (24,487,088) {23,865,939;
Cperating (Loss)/Profit {10,141,9549) 11,446,149
Fimance Income 19 1,325 1,104 .
Finance ¢osts 12 L (1444013 (2,587,925}
(Loss)/Profit before income tax (11.584,742) 8,859,328
Ingome tax 14 5,350,819 (3.209.234)
(Loss}/Profit for the financial year (6,233,923) 5,650,094

All of the activities of the Group are classed as continuing.
The Company has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to pubiish its own Income statement.

There is no material difference between the (loss)prafit before Income tax and the (loss)/profit for the financial year
stated above and their historical cost equivalents.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257 -1



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

{Loss)/Profit for financial year
Other comprehensive expense items
that may be reclassified to profit or loss:

Fareign currency transiation adjustments

Total comgrehensive {expense)/Income
for the year

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257

Note

“12-

31 December

31 December

202 2020
E £
(6,233,923} 5.650,004
(533.062) 1645,173)
{6,766,985) 5.004,921




SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

MNate
ASSETS
Nan-current assets
Intangible assets 4
Property, plast and equ<pment 3
Right-of-use assets 6
Deferred tax assets 14
Tole! non-current ossets
Current Assets
Trade and other recenables 2
Cash and cash equivalents 9
Currentincome tax assets s
Total current assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 10
Contingent and deferred consideration 12
Deferred tax fiabilities 14
Lease liabilities ]
Tote! non-current liabifites
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13
Borrowings 10
Lease liabilitiag 6
Contingent and deferred consideration 12
Corporatlon tax payable 14
Total current irabifities
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS/(LIABHTIES)
EQuUITY
Share cap-tal and share premium 17
Share options reserve 17
Capital contribution 17
Other reserves 17
Retained earnings 7

TOTAL EQUITY

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257 .13,

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£ £
22,031,661 12,844,499
843,940 823,420
1,538,216 2,155,013
9,409,433 2,223,819
33,823,750 18,046,751
63,214,348 20,278,705
4,654,943 10,347.686
450,637 -
68,319,928 30,626,392
102,143,178 48,673,143
. 42 967,497
1,611,789 1.076,663
1,313.011 1,125213
760,858 1,204,825
4,685,658 46,374,198
20,317,369 10.307.533
o 428,731
762,282 958,647
3355515 -
2, 452,230
24,435.166 12,147,141
29,120,824 58,521,339
73,022,354 (9,848,196)
415 415
- 7,427,241
91,581,908 -
(27,800,130) (27,267,068}
9,240,161 9,991,237
73,022,354 (9,848,195}




SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

The financial statements on pages 11 to 64 were approved and authorised for issue by the Director on 16 December
2022.

Mr J. Nardone
16 December 2022

Company registration number: 04339257

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Note £ £

ASSETS
Non-current assets N
Intangibte assets a 6,456,593 4,336,118
Property, plant and eguipment 5 620,352 634,579
Right-of-use assets 3 817.580 1,239,314
Investments 7 301,115,277 43,074,205
Deferred tax asset B4 329,054 269.836
Tato! non-current ossets 308.338 856 49,554,052
Current Assets .
Trade and other receivables g 53,813,715 25,130,483
Cash and ¢ash equivalents g 1,255,514 5,698,909
Fotaf current ossets 55,069,229 30,825,392
Tatal assets 363,408,085 80,333,444
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabifities
Borrowings 10 - 42,967,497
Contingent and deferred consideration 12 2611789 1.076,663
Deferred tax labilitiesg 14 1125613 887,622
Lease liabilities & 323,640 767,055
Teta! nan-current liohilities 4,061,048 45,698,837
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 3979138 16,770,262
Borrowings 10 S 428,731
Contingent and deferred consideration 12 3,355,515 -
Lease Liabiities 6 438242 417,188
Corporation tax payable 14 472,454 228,630
Total current habilities . §.245,349 17.844.811
Total liabilities 12,306,397 63,543,648
NET ASSETS 351,101,688 16,839,796
EQUITY
Share capital and $hare premium 17 415 414
Share options reserve 17 - 407.491
Capital contribution 17 91,581,908 -
Other reserves 17 255,794,349 6,157,690
Retained earnings 17 3725016 10,274,200
TOTAL EQUITY 351,101,688 16,839,796

The accompanying notes form an integrat part of these finangial statements. The parent company has elected to take
the s408 exemption and as a result it is exempt from the requirement to publish its individual profit and foss account
and the related notes. The Company's ioss for 2021 was £4,662,461 (the Company’s profit for 2020 was £9,039,299).

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
-1%-

Company number 04339257



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AS AT 21 DECEMBER 2021

The financial statements on pages 11 to 64 were approved and authorised for issue by the Director on 16 December
2022,

Mr }. Nardone
16 December 2022

Company registration number: 04339257

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

Campany number 04339257
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Balance at 1 January
2020

Profu for financial
year

Other comprehensive
expense

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Bonus issue of shares
Reduction n capital
Share based schame
changes

Dividends paid
Cumulatwe translation
adpustment

Balance at 31
December 2020

Loss for financial year
Other comprehensive
expense

Total comprehensive
expense for the year

Capital contribution
Share based scheme
tharge

Dividends paid
Share based stheme
changes

Balance at 31
December 2021

Share Share Capital Other Retained .
. . Total aquity
caphtal and option tontribution reserves earnings
share reserve
premium
Note £ £ £ £ £ £
8,765,462 6,830,352 1,578,105 16,163,781 33,337,700
17 - - 5,650,094 5,650,094
17 - {645,473) - (645,173)
- - - (645,173} 5,650,094 5,004,921
17 28,200,000 - {28,206,000) -
17 (36,965,047) - - . 36,965,047 -
17 496.888 - 536,888
17 - - (48,777,618} {48,777.618)
17 . {10,087) {10,087)
415 7,427,240 - {27,267,068) 9,991,247 (9,848,196}
e ) .. 1 | 1} U R —
17 . - (6,233.923) (6,233,923)
17 w3306 (533,062)
. . B (533,062} 16,233,923) {6,766,985)
17 - 91,581,808 91,581,908
17 995,245 995,245
17 - - (1.8856,723) {1,886.723)
17 (8,422,485) 7,369,590 {1.052,895)
415 - 91,521,908 {27,800,130) 9,240,161 73,022,354

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

Company number 04339257
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Balance at 1 January 2020

Proft for finantial year
Fair value gain - other
comprehensive ing g

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Reduction in share capital
Bonus issue

Drdends paid

Share hased sctheme ¢hanjies
Balance at 31 December
2020

Loss for the financial year
Fair value gamn - other
tompretiensive income

Tatal tcomprehensive
income for the year

Captal conkriivtion
Prvidends pawd

Share hased stheme charges
Share based scheme
charges

Balance at 31 December
2021

Noe

17
”

”
"
17
L1

7
17

7
W

7

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

Company number 04339257

18-

Share Share Capital Other Retained Total eguity
capital and aption contribution TesErves eaTNINGs
share reserve
premium
£ £ £ £ £ £
8,765,462 345,685 - 30,034.195 13,047,472 %2,192,814
- - - 9,039,299 9,039,299
- 4,323,495 - 4,323,495
. . . 4,323,495 9,039,259 13,362,794
{36.965,047) 36,965.047
28,200,050 - - (28.280,000) - -
. - - - 148,777.618) (48,777,618)
61,836 - 61,806
415 407,491 - 6,157,690 10,274,200 16,839,796
. 14,662,461) (4,662,451)
- - 249636659 249,636,655
. - . 249,636,659 14,662,461) 244,974,148
91.581,908 - 91,581,908
- - (1,885,723) (1,866,723)
- 22357 - - 22397
- (429.848} - - {429,348)
a5 - 91,581,508 255,794,349 3,725,016 351,101,688
————— i— e——— ——— e——— e—————s——



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
MNore £ £

Cash flows (used in)/generated from
operating activities
Cash generated {used in)/generated from # (35844.510) 15,755,171
Operatlons
income taxes paid {2,085,073}) (1,980,152)
Net c_u..m (outflow)/inflow from operating (37.929.583) 13,775,019
activities
Cash flows {used in)/generated from
investing activities
Acquisition of business it (2,945,192) -
Contingent consideration payments (1,803,637} -
Payments for property, p:ant and equipment 3 (749,885} (556,312}
Payment for software development costs 4 (3.917.494) {3,355,208)
Interest recexed 1,325 1,104
Net cosh outflow from investing activities (9,414,383} {3.910,416)
Cash flows generated from/(used in)
financing activities
Capital contribution from Mediaocean LLC 17 48,103,467
Cancellation of share options {1,052,895)
Proceeds from borrowings 10 - 24,868,888
Repayment of barrowings 10 {899,865) {3.075,796)
Principal element of lease payments & {1.009,141) (1,210,268)
Interest pad 11,503,120) (2.562,335)
Dividends paid (1,886,723 {23.766,657)
Net cosh inflow/{autfiow) from finoncing 41,651,723 (5.746,168)
activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash (5.692,743) 4,118,435
equlvalents
Cash aqd cas.h equivalents at the beginning 9 10.347.686 £.329.251
of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of 9 4,654,943 10,347.686

financial year

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

" Cash flows (used in)/generated from
operating activities
Cash {used in)/generated from operations
Incame taxes pad
Net cosh foutflowl/inflow fram operating
activitles

Cash flows (used in)/generated from
investing activities

Acquisitron of business

Contingent consideration payments
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Payenent for software develapment costs
Interest receved

Net cash cutflow from investing octivities

Cash flows generated from/{used in)
financing activities

Capital contribution from Mediaocean LLC
Cancellation of share aptions

Proceeds from borrawings

Repayment of barrow:ngs

Principal element of lease payments
Interest paid

Dividends paid

Dividends received

Net cash inflow/(outfiow) from financing
activities

Net {decrease}/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
financial year

Note

21

10
10

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

Company number 04339257

- 20-

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£ £
{37,349511} 9,981,824
{750,000) {532.050)
{38,099,511) 9,449,874
(2,545,192)
{1.803.637) -
(544,285) (475,792
(3,517,493} (3.355,208)
e e 581
(9,210,607) {3.830,419)
48,103,467 -
(429.848)
B 24,868,888
(859.865) {3.075,796)
(417,188) (396,916)
(1,603,120) (2,430,907
{1.886.723) (23.766.657)
- 4,346,072
42,866,723 (455,316)
(4,443.395) 5.164,139
5,698,809 $34,770
1,255,514 5,698,909




SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The operating businesses within the Group, trading as “Flashtalking”, are independent ad serving. measuring and
technology companies praviding best-in-class digital advertising products, service and support for online advertisers,
key media buying and creative agencies. The Company is a private limited company limited by shares, incorporated
on 12 December 2007 and domiciled in United Kingdom, with a registered address at Suite 1, 7* Floor, 50 Broadway,
London, SW1H 0BL.

In August 2021 Mediaocean LLC campleted the acquisition of the Flashtalking group, and as a result the Group now
forms part of the Mediaocean LLC group of companies.

These Group and Company financial statements were authorised for issue by the Director on 16 December 2022.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting pelicies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied.

2.1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consclidated financial statements of the Group and Company have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted
Internaticnal Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial
statements are presented in Pounds Sterling and have been prepared under the historical cost and fair value model
in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

The preparation of the financial statements In conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS)
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates which have been laid out in note 3. Accounting policies have
been applied consistently, other than where new policies have been adopted.

Going conceérn

The director is required to prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappraopriate to
presume Simplicity Marketing Limited and its subsidiaries will continue in business. The Group is In a positive net
assets position, has a positive cash balance at the balance sheet date and expects positive cashflow in the 12 months.
Management has prepared cash flow forecasts through to December 2023 that show the Group will continue to
generate positive cash flow over this period. These forecasts have been stress tested 1o include a severe but plausibie
downside scenario, even under these conditions the Group remains able to fund ongelng trading liquidity
requirements from within existing cash resources for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the
financial statements. The director therefore has no concerns with regards to the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern,

As disclosed in Note 1, the Group was acquired by Mediaocean LLC in August 2021 and now forms part of an enlarged
group. OceanKey (U.S.) Il Corp. ("OceanKey®) was formed on August 5, 2021, as a US limited liability company to
facilitate the acquisition of Mediaocean LLC. OceanKey and Mediaocean LLC were acquired by funds owned by CvC
Capital Partners and TA Assariates which are registered in the United States of America. OceanKey entered into a
Credit Agreement with a financial institutien that includes a first and second lien term note payable and a revolving
line of credit. These borrowings are subject to certain covenants and are secured by substantially all of the assets of
OceanKey and its subsidiaries which include the Group. There are currently no borrowings against the revolving line
of credit, and OceanKey is currently in compliance with all of its covenants.

The director has concluded that the enlarged Group is able to continue as a going concern due to cash on-hand,

forecast cash generated from operations, and the revolving line of credit for a period of at least 12 months from the
date of signing the financial statements and that the risk of the Group's assets being called as security is remote,

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257 21



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION {CONTINUED)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
wew and amended standards and interpretations effective in the year for the Group ond Company

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first e for its annual reporting period
commencing January 1, 2021:

« Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

s COVID-19 Related Rent cancessions {Amendment tce IFRS 16}
* Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7)

The above new standards and amendments applicable for the year are not deemed to have a material impact on
the financial statements of Simplicity Marketing Limited.

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2021 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and all of its subsidiary
undertakings made up to the relevant year end. The subsidiary undertakings’ financial years are cotermincus with
those of the Company.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has tantro!. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its invalvernent with the entity and has the ability tc affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsclidated from the date that centrol ceases.

2.3. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue represents the amounts receivable for advertising services provided in the normal course of business, net
of VAT and other sales related taxes. Revenue recognition is based on the satisfaction of performance obligations
and an assessment of when control is transferred to the customer. 1t is recognised in a way that depicts the
transfer of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the ¢consideration te which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those services,  Transaction price is allocated to each perfermance gbligation on the
basis of the relative selling prices of each distinct service promised in the contract.

Step 1: Identify the contract with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise the revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation

Controd of a service is obtained when the customer has the ability to obtain substantially all the benefits from the
service.

Customer contracts vary across the Group and contain a variety of performance obligations. Under [FRS15, the

Group must evaluate whether the goods or services are transferred over time or at a point in time for each
perfarmance cbligation.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED  -22-
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.3. REVENUE RECOGNITION {(CONTINUED}

A summary of how the key classes of revenue are recognised is provided below:

Ad-serving Point in time, based on number of impressions served within the period
Analytics Point in time, on delivery of report

Praduction Point in time, on release of digital advert to client

Verification Pintin Lime, based on number of impressions served within the period

The transaction price is determined by the agreed terms of the contract.  For the Ad-serving and Verification
revenue streams, this is dependent on the number of impressions served within the periopd.  Some customers
purchase a fixed fee package which includes a set number of impressions.  in these instances, the transaction
price is increased by any additional impressions served.

2.4. SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting pravided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is respons:ble far allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive management team. The Group has
identified one operating segment under IFRS 8.

2,5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(a} Research and development expenditure

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred, Directly attributable costs incurred on development
projects (relating to the design and testing of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets when
the following criteria are fulfilled:

i. itistechnically feasible to complete the intangitle asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
ii.  management intends to tomplete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
fii. there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
iv. it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
V. adequate technical, financial and other resources 1o complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and
vi.  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised include the product development employee costs and related
management time, Research and development expenditure is amortised over the useful economic life of 3 years.

(h) Computer software

Acquired computer software products are capitalised along with the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of between 12 manths and 3 years.
Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED »s
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

{c) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is wncluded in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amoitised but is tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicated that it might be impaired
and is carried at cost less accurmlated impairment lusses.

Goodwiil is allocated to cash-generaung units for the purpose of impalrment testing. The aliocation is made to thase
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating groups that are expected (o benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwllt arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for interna® management purpases, being the operating segment {see note 4).

(d) Trademarks, customer relationships and nan-compete agreements

Trademarks, customer relatonships and non-compete agreements acquired in a business combination are
recagnised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have a fin‘te useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation.  These costs are amortised over their estirnated usefu? lives of between 12 months and
10 years.

(e) Developed Technology

Developed technology comprises of the intellectual property acquired in a business combination and recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date.  They have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumu’ated
amortisation. Developed technology assets are amortised over their estimated useful economic lives of between 3
and 15 years.

2.6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historigal cost less accumutated depreciation. Depreciation is provided
an alt praperty, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of each
assel, on a straight-line basis over its expected vsefu! bfe as follows. other than fixtures and fittings which are
depreciated on a reducing batanca basis:

« Leasehold progerty: over the term of the lease

¢ Computer equipment: 2 years

*  Fixtures and fittings 3 years

The assets’ residual values and useful fives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An
asset’s carrying amount i$ written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than ts esumated recoverable amcunt.

2.7. TAXATION

the Company is$ managed and controlled n the Unted Kingdom and, consequently, is tax resident in the United
Kingdom.

Current tax is Calculated on the profits of the period, Current tax is determ:ned wsing tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED 24
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability methed, on temporary d.fferences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Consolidated Financial Statements, However, if the deferred
tax arlses from initial recognition of an asset ar liahility in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected 1o apply when the related deterred income tax asset is realised, or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if the tax relates to items that
are credited or charged, in the same or a different peried, in cther comprehensive income or directly in equity,

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible ternparary differences and unused tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred fncome tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.8. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. They are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than twelve months after the balance sheet date. A provision for impairment of trade receivables Is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group wilf not be able to coltect all amounts due according to
the original contractual terms. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
trade receivable Is impaired.

The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of a provision account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement within selling and
marketing costs. When a trade receivable is unccllectable, it is written off against the provision account in trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against selling and marketing casts
in the income statement.

The Group applies the IFRS § simplified approach to measuring expected credit 1osses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables.

The expected loss rates are Dased on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months and the corresponding

historicat credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect the current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivable.

2.9, ACCRUED INCOME

Accrued income are amounts due from customers for services performed and which have not yet been invoiced under
existing agreements.

Accrued income is recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less provision for impalrment, Provision for impairment is determined, when applicable, when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts,

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED "%
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PQLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.10. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

{a) Pension obligations
The Group operates defined contribution plans. A defined contributron is a pension plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributians into an independently administrated pension fund.

The Group has nao legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets ta pay all employees the benefits relaung tc employee service in the current and prior periods.

The coniributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recggnised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

(h) Share-based payment transactions

The Group and Company operate eguity-settleg share-based compensation plans, The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the share optiens is recognised as an expense. The total amount tc be
expensed over the estimated vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability).

Modifications of the performance conditions are accounted for as a modifcation under IFRS 2, in particular, where a
modfiicaticn increases the fair value of the equity instruments granted, the Group includes the incremental fair value
granted in the measurement of the amount recognised for the services received over the remainder of the vesting
period.

(c) Accrued annual leave
The Group has recagnised a provision for accrued, unused annual leave. The provision is measured as the amount
which would be paid if settled 'n full and 15 presented as Trade and other payables in the balance sheet.

2.11. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entties are measured using the currency of the
primary economic enwronment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The Consolidated Financial
Statements are presented in Briuish Pound (G8P), wh.ch 1s the Company's functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transaction balarnices

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses result:ng from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabiliues denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

(¢} Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflat:onary
economy)} that have a functiona! currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange rate at the date of
that balance sheet;

(i} income and expenses far each income statement are translated at average exchange rates unless this average 15
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the date ofthe transaction; and
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.11. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (CONTINUED)
(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the nat qualifying investment in foreign
operations are taken to shareholders’ equity.

The Group and Company has availed of the exemption in IFRS 1, whereby the cumlative translation differences for
all foreign operations were deemed to be reset to zero at the date of transition to IFRS.

2.12, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Both the Company and Group's objectives, when managing capital, are te safeguard the ability to continue as a going
concern in arder to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakehoiders, and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company and Graup can adjust the number of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or selt assets to reduce debt.

During 2021, the Group's capital management strategy changed from a gearing ratio basis to a dividends and
shareholders returns basis,  The reason for this change was because the Group was acquired by Mediaocean LLC
in August 2021. A gearing ratio strategy was no longer applicable due to afl outstanding external debt within the
Group being repald by Mediaocean LLC upon acquisitian,

2.13, LEASES

At inception of a cantract, it is assessed whether a cantract is, or contains a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

The Group and entity will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for the short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12
months or lessy and leases of low value assets, For these leases, the Group and Company recogn:ses the lease
payments as an operating expense on a siraight line basis over the term of the lease, unless another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which the economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencernent date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. [f this rate cannaot be readily determined, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease tiability
and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the [ease payments made.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, iease payments made
at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any :nitial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured at cast less accumulated degreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the asset.
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.13. LEASES {CONTINUED)
(i) The Groups leasing achivities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, vehicles and equipment. Renta! contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 12
months to § years but may have extension options as described in (v) below.

Contracts may contain bath lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to the lease and non-lease components based cn their relative stand-alone prices.

However, for leases of real estate for which the Group s a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and nan-lease
components and Instead accounts far these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wi.de range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than security Interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor, Lease assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding hability at the date at which the leased asset is
avallable for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilties arsng from a lease are nitally measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease payments:

- Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incent ves receivable

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also not included in the measurement
of the liabiity,

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which Is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being
the rate that the individual lessee would have 10 pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
of the right-of-use asset In a similar econamic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. The discount
rate applied to the leases varied between 3.88% and 4,95%

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

- Where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted (o
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received

-Uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held, and

- Makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which are
not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or
rate t3ke effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss aver

the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period,
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.13. LEASES (CONTINUED)
Right-of-use assels are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any fease incentives received
- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underiying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term and low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss, Short-term leases are leases with a [ease term of 12 manths or less. Low-value assets comprise IT
equipment and small items of office furniture.

(i} Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases across the Group. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group's operations. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Grecup and not by the respective lessor.

2.14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three manths or less.

2.15.5HARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attribuiable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16. INVESTMENT IiN SUBSIDIARIES

From 1 January 2020, there was a change in the accounting policy for accounting for investments in subsidiaries in
accordance with JAS 39, under the fair value method of accounting. This change was applied retrospectively, such that
the comparative figures at 1 January 2019 and 31 Decernber 2019 were updated accordingly as if this policy had been
in farce at those dates.

The change in policy is considered to provide maore relevant and reliable information to users of the financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of 1AS 8 by more accurately reflecting the value of the Company's
investments. The change in policy is also deemed to provide the entity with greater flexibility with regards to
managing capital, including debt and equity funding and shareholders returns, As the Group is a privately owned tech
company, the investment values can fluctuate very rapidly when compared to publicly traded competitors and/or
market activity. Thus, it is deerned that carrying these assets at fair value will provide a more accurate reflection of
the investments’ fair market value when compared to historic cost.

For the 2021 reporting year, the fair value of the investments was calculated based on a detailed analysis following
the acquisition of the Group by Mediaocean LLC (see note 7 for further details). The fair value movement at this date
is recognised as other comprehensive income.
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.17.TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.18. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES
Interestincome and expenses are recognised an a time-propartion basis using the effective interest method.
2,19, EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional items are material non-recurring items that derive from events or transactions that fall within the crdinary
activities of the Group and Company and which individually or, if of a similar type, in aggregate, are separately
disclosed by virtue of their size or Incidence. Such items may include acquisition related costs, litigation costs and
settlement or one-off costs where separate identification is important to gain an understanding of the financial
statements. Judgement is used by the Group in assessing the particuiar items which should be disclosed in the income
statement and related notes as exceptional items.

2.20. PROVISIONS

Provisions for legal claims are recagnised when the Group and Campany has a present legal or constructive obligat:on
3s a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of rescurces will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be reguired in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likethood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be smaill.

Provisions are measured at the present va'ue of the expenditures expected te be required to settle the cbligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.21. BORROWINGS

Borrowngs are recognised initiatly at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowlings are subsequently carried
at amortised cost; any difference between the praceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 18
recognised Inthe income statermnent over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Borrowings
are classified as current liabilities unless the Group or Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
habifity for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.22. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subs‘diary comprises the:

3 Fair values of the assets transferred
ik Liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business
isk. Equity interests issued by the Group
iv. Fair value of any asset or liability resutting from a contingent consideration arrangement, and
V. Fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.22, BUSINESS COMBINATIONS POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Identifiable assets acquired, and liabifities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-centrolling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity's net identifiable assets.
Acquisition related costs are cxpenscd as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous entity interest in the acquired entity, over the fair value of the net
identifiabte assets acquired is recaorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the Income statement as a bargain purchase.

where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either eguity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group and Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Estimates and judgements are
¢continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actua! resuits. The estimates and assumptions that have a higher degree of
ludgement or complexity within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Capitalisation of development costs - (Critical Estirnate)

Internal staff costs associated with the development of software products both for internal use and external sale are
capitalised and amortised over the estimated useful fife of the product, which is fixed at 3 years. In determining the
staff costs auributable to developrment, management have to estimate the time spent on each project. The
capualisatian policy 1s capped at 90% per engwneer, per month. This means that in any given month, a maximum of
90% of an engineer’s total labour cost can be capitalised, with a minimum of 109 being expensed through the Income
Statement.

Costs incurred on development projects are recognised as intangible assets only whenit is probable that the project
will be a success considering its commercial and technical feastbilty.  The project must be intended for completion
and the Campany must be able to demonstrate how the asset will generate future ecenomic benefits,

If the Company is unabie to distinguish the research phase of a project from the development phase, the expenditure
for that projest wilt be treated as if it were incurred in the research phase only and will not be recognised as an
intangible asset. Capitalisation ceases and amortisation commences once a product or enhancement is available
for depfoyment
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Fair value of investments - (Critical Estimate)

For the 2021 reporting year, the value of the investments was calculated based on a detailed fair value analysis
following the acquisition of the Group by Mediaocean LLC. Muitiple scenarios and methodologies were calculated
(including Revenue Allocations, EBITDA Multipliers and Forecast Benchmarks) to support the wvaluation.
Management based these calculations on estimated figures (see note 7 for further details). The nature of the
assumption made by management, was that the scenario which provided the best estimate of the market value of
the investments was selected.

Management believe that the change to a market approach in 2021 from the market/income approach used in 2020,
will provide a more accurate reflection of the value of the Group’s investments because the price paid for the Group
is stronger evidence of fair value.

(c) Sales tax fiability - (Critical Estimate)

Flashtalking, Inc,, a wholly owned subsidiary of Simplcity Marketing Limited, 1s subject to taxation in the United States.
The company provides services to customers :n various states within the United States, which may create nexus in
those states to collect sales tax on sales to customers. The company estimates the related provision for the sales tax
liability based on each state's laws and revenue. In the current year, the company concluded that it has historically
incurred sales tax expense in jurisdictions where it expected 1o remit sales tax payments but were not yet collecting
from customers.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of this sales tax tiability was $6,750,000 (transkated at £5,001,001 at 31
December 2021). The carrying amount of this liability was zero as at 1 January 2021, There were no amounts used in
the period or unused amounts reversed s the period,  The company is currently sull completing its analysis, and the
carrying amount is the mid-paint of the estimated range. The range was developed by management with the help of
3™ party tax specialists, reviewing sa‘es tax regulations by state and determining which of the company’s revenue
streams are taxable in each state. From there, the company calcu'ated an estimated range by taking each state's
taxable revenue, the sales tax rate, and the lookback perigd. The company ts still refining its calculation of each taxable
revenue stream and verifying customer billing addresses. The company expects ta complete the process and make
the necessary payments to the states by the end of 2023. Changes m tax taws appficable to us, including
interpretations thereof and related accounting standards, could a:so impact the l-abilty.

Due to the change in the company's ownership (acquisition of the Group by Med:aocean LLC) and the current and
ever-changing interpretation of what is considered taxabie by the states, the company concluded that thiss a change
in estimate in the current year and not a prior period error and has therefore been accounted for prospectively,

td) Intangible assets through acquisitions - (Critical Estimate)

Intangible assets recognised through acquisitions comprise customer relationships, acquired technolegy, non-
compete agreements and acquired trade names. The cost of the intangible asset is derived based upon management's
assertions of projected cash flows. These calculations require the use of estimates regarding expected future cash
flows to be derived from the asset, revenue growth and EBITDA margin
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group

At 1 January 2020
{ost

Accumulated
nortisative and
impairment

Net Book Amount

Year ending 31
December 2020
Opening net hook
amount

Exchange differences
Additions
Amortisation charge
Closing Net Baok
Amount

At t January 2021
Cost

Accumulsted
amaortisation and
impatrment

Net Book Amaunt

Year ending 31
December 2021
Opening net book
amount

£xchange differences
Additions

oisposals
Amoartisatloiv tharge
Amonisatibﬁ'a
disposals
Closing Net Beok
Amount

At 31 December
2021

Cost
Accumulated
g:ponisatian and
impairment

Net Book Amount

Goodwill Internally Acquired Rfll:t?::;ri Acquired Non- Acquired Total
generated saftware s P Technotogy Compete Trade
software Agreements Names
£ £ £ £ [3 £ £ £
7867 §13 4,681,848 2,841,213 1,468,395 1,067,924 581,076 100,933 21,637,902
{4,818,581) {2.136,616} {386,752} (720,302} (556,065} {71,314} {8.689,630)
7.887,513 2,863,267 704,597 1,021,643 347,622 25,011 38,613 12,948,272
7.887.513 2,883,267 704,557 1,081,643 347,622 25011 38.61% 12,948,272
{275,708) - (369) (28,938} 6,353 145 718 {297,799}
- 3,355,208 - . - - 3.355,208
. {L1B7.608)  (308.88%) {182,775 {330,181} (25,156}  (36.490) (3,161,182
— Ca " b owm et o R T R IR TR U B B i T e
7.611,805 4,030,780 305,342 869,530 23,794 - 2,847 12,844,499
7,B87.513 11,437,056 2,841,213 1.468.395 1,067,924 581,076 109,933 24593110
{275,708) 7,006,276) {2.535.870) (598,465} (1,044,130} {581.076) (107.086) {12,148,611)
7.611,805 4,030,780 305,343 860,930 23,794 - 2,847 12,844,459
2,611,805 4,030,780 305,343 869,930 23,794 - 2,847 12844499
111.985 - {5} 6,985 {62y - {6} 1189M
3,569,989 3,917,494 272,472 3,327,024 323,393 1333678 12,744,050
- . {35,275) - - . (35,275]
- {2.644,346) (152,673) (404,372) 21477 {142,004) (112671 13,675,789
35,275 - . - 35,275
11,293,778 5,303,928 152,665 745,019 3,136.039 181,388 1,218,842 22,031,661
11,293,778 14,954,550 2,805,386 4,657,934 4,334,633 871651 1,437,402 37,355.335
- 19,650,622) (2652,721) (9121 %) (1.198.594) 690,262y (2'8.560) {15.323,674i
11,293,779 5,303,925 152,665 745,019 3,136,038 181,389 1,218,842~ _22,031,8-61

Amortisation of £3,675,789 (2020: £3,161,182} is included in administrative expenses :n the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINLUED)

Internally Acquired Total
Company generated software

software

£ £ £

At 1 jJanuary 2020
Cost 7,681,848 2,805,386 1,487,234
Accumulated amartsation and impairment (4,818,581) 12,101,163} 16,919,744)
Net Book Amount | 2,863,267 704,223 3,567,490
Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net hook amount 2,863.267 4,223 3,567,490
Additions 3,355,208 . 3,355,208
Reclassifications - - .
Amortsation charge (2,187,695} {398,885} (2,586,580)
Closing Net ook Amount 4,030,780 305,338 4,336,118
At 1 January 2021
Cost 11,037,856 2,805,286 13,842,442
Accumulated amortisation and impairment {7.006,276; {2.500.048) (9,506,324}
Net Baok Amount 4,030,780 305,338 4,336,118
Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net book amount 4,030,780 305,338 4,336,118
Addiions 3,917,493 - 3.917,493
Amortisation charge (2.644,345) {(152,673) (2,797,018}
Closing Net 8ook Amount 5,303,928 152,665 5,456,593
At 3% Pecember 2021
Cost . 14,954,543 2,805,386 17,753,935
Accumulated amortisation and Impairment (9.650,621) (2,652,721} (12,303,342}
Net Book Amount 5,303,928 152,665 5,456,593

Amartisation of £2,797,018 (2020: £2,586,580) is included in administrative expenses in the income statement.
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NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

GROUP

)] Goodwill breakdown by entity:

31 December 2020

Protected Media

FTi Gmbh Limited (Israel) Total
£ £ £ £
At 1 January 2020 7,743,319 144,194 7887513
Fureign exchange inuvenents (283.625) 797 - (275.708)
At 31 December 2020 7,459,694 152,111 - 7,611,805
31 December 2021
Protected
FTI Gmbh Media Limited Total
{Israel}

£ 3 £ £
At 1 January 2021 7.459,694 152,111 7,611,805
Additions 3,569,989 3,569,989
Foreign exchange movements 89,318 (19.135) 32,802 111,985
At 31 December 2021 7,549,012 141,976 3,602,791 11,293,77%

(ii) iImpairment test for goodwill

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. For the 2021 reporting year, the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) was determined based en a detailed fair value analysis
following the acquisition of the Group by Mediaocean LLC. Six different scenarios were tested using various
methodologies (including Revenue Allocation, EBITDA Muliples and Forecast Benchmarks) tc support the

assessment.

The director and management have considered and evaluated reasonable possible changes for key assumptions used
in the analysis and have not identified any instances that could cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable

amount.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

Company number 04339257



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED})

(iii} fmpairment of internally generated software
The weighted average remaining amortisation period of the product development is 33 months (2020: 33 months). In
the year, research and development expenditure of £3,917,494 (2020: £3,355,208) was capitalised.

As at 31 December 2021, there were product development assets of £Nil {2020: £Nil) which are currently under
development and are not yet ready for use. The amortisation of these assets had not started as at 31 December 2021,

Management has identified one CGU. The Group represents the lowest level at which the related assets are monitored
for internal management purposes.

The Group tests whether internally generated scftware has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. For the 2021
reporting year, the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) was determined based on a detailed fair
value analysis following the acquisition of the Group by Mediaocean LLC. Six different scenarios were tésted using
various methodologies (including Revenue Allocation, EBITDA Multiples and Forecast Benchmarks) to support the
assessment.

The director and management have considered and evaluated reasanable possible changes for key assumptions used
in the analysis and have not identified any instances that could cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable
amount,

{iv) Acquired software
The weighted average remaining amortisation period of acquired software is 24 manths (2020: 24 months).

During 2021, the Group made sofiware purchases of £Nil (2020: £Nil}. Acquired software products have an estimated
useful life of between 12 months and three years.

The Group tests whether acquired software has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. For the 2021 reporting
year, the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit ({CGU) was determined based on a detailed fair value analysis
following the acquisition of the Group by Mediaocean LLC, Six different scenarios were tested using various
methodolegies (including Revenue Allocaticn, EBITDA Multiples and Ferecast Benchmarks) to support the
assessment,

The director and management have considered and evatuated reasonable possitle changes for key assurmnptions used
in the analysis and have not identified any instances that could cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable
amount.
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Graup Leasehold Fixtures and Computer Total

property fittings equipment

E £ £ £

At 1 January 2020
Cost 353.00% 254,925 3,660,959 4,268,903
Accumulated depreciatian {330,949 {190.209) {2,721,458) (3.242,612)
Ciosing Net Book Amount 22,060 64,720 933,511 1,026,291
Year ended 31 December 2020
Cpening net book amoting 22,060 64,720 939.511 1.026,291
Exchange differentes 120 (365) 2,660 2,415
Additiens - 1,056 555,256 556,312
Depreciation charge {12,301) (33,269} (716.028) (761,598)
Closing Net Book Amount 9879 32142 781,399 823,420
At 1 January 2021
Cost 353,009 255,981 4,216,225 4,825,215
Accumulated depreciation o (3430 30)M L (M223k8w3§gl . 53,1;&8"%6;“ y lL4,001.7.9§}‘ R
Closing Net Book Amount 9,879 32,142 781,399 823,420
Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net book amount 9,879 32142 781,399 823,420
Assets acquired In business combinauon B 12,870 3.834 16,704
Exchange differences (57} 128 {3.331) (3,260}
Additans - 486 743,359 749.885
Disposals - - (62,827) (62.827)
Depreciation charge (6,542} {9,238) (727,029) (742,809)
Accumulated deprecistion on disposals o - . ., Jag27 62827
Clasing Net Book Amount 3,280 36.388 804,272 843,940
At 31 December 2021
Cost 346,671 263,768 4,885,508 5485347
Accumulated depreciation {342,791} (227.380) {4,081,236) (4,651,407)
Net Book Amount 3,280 36,388 804,272 843,940

Depreciation of £1,723,552 (2020: £2,095,950} has been charged in administrative expenses in the income
statement. This includes the depreciation of Right-of-use assets (note 6) for an amount of £980,742 (2020:
£1,334,352).
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED}

Company Leaseheld Fixtures and Computer Total
property firtings equipment
£ £ £ £
At 1 january 2020
Cast 230.162 29,524 2,650,502 2,910,188
Accumulated depreciation 22,114} (28470} (1,949,557} (2,200,141)

Closing Net Book Amount T Bo4s 1,054 700,945 710,047

Year ending 31 December 2020

Opening net book amaunt 8,048 1,054 700,945 710.047
Additions - 475,792 475,792
Depreciation charge (2.640) (323} (548,297) (551.260)
Closing Net Book Amount ' 5,408 731 628,440 634,579
At 1 January 2021

Cost 230,162 29,524 3,126,294 3.385,980
Accumulated depreciation (224,754) {28,793} (497,854)  {2751.400)
Clasing Net Book Amoaunt 5,408 731 §28,440 634,579

Year ending 31 December 2021

Opening net book amount 5,408 73t €28.440 634,579
Additions - 544,285 544,285
Depreciation charge (2.295) {111y {556,106) (558512)
Closing Net Book Amount 3,113 620 616,619 620,352

At 31 December 2021

Cost 230,162 29,524 3,670,579 3,930,265
Accumulated depreciation {227,049) (28909)  (3.053,960 (3,309,913
Net Book Amount 3,113 620 616,619 620,352

Depreciation of £980,246 {2020: £990,000} has been charged in admimstrative expenses inthe income statement,
This includes the depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Note &) far an amount of £421,724 (2020; £438,740),
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

6. LEASES

i) Amounts recognised in the bafance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Group Bulldings vehicles Equipment Total
Right-of-use assets £ E £ £
Year ending 31 December
2020
Opening net book amourit 3,418,108 9,743 7,472 3,435,323
Exchange difference 2,254 536 (274) 2516
Additions - 38,739 - 38,739
Depreciation charge {1.316,793) {14,654} (2.905) {1.334.352)
repmene
Closihg net book amount 2,116,263 34,364 4,386 21 '55',013"
¥Year ending 31 December
2021
Opening net book amount 2.116,263 34,364 4,386 2.155013
Exchange differences (938} (2,290) 53 (3.225)
Addrions 368,874 6,978 . 375,852
Depreciation charge {963,240) (14,515) {2,987) (080,742)
Rent review and
prepayment (8,634) {101} 53 (8,682)
Clasing net book amaunt 1,512,275 24,436 1,505 1,538,216
Lease Liabilities
Year ending 31 December Buildings vehicles Equipment Total
2020 £ £ £ £
Opening net book amount 3,359.984 9,964 6.626 3,376,574
Exchange differences {55,843} 547 (243) (59,539)
Additions . 38,739 : 38,739
Disposals . . - -
Payments (1,325,593} {15,392} [2.700) {1.343,685)
Interest expense 132,476 748 194 133,416
Rent review and 17.874 - 93 17,967
prepayments
Closing net book amount 2,124,298 34,604 3,970 2,163,472
Year ending 31 December
2021
QOpening net book amount 2124898 34,604 3,970 2,163,472
Exchange differences 9,729 {2,305) 48 7.472
Additions 368,873 6.979 - 375.852
Payment (1,080,696) {15.489) {2.786) (1,098,971}
Interest expense 88,390 1.333 107 89,830
Rent review and {14,483) (85) 53 {14,515
prepaymants
Closing net book amount 1,496,711 25,037 1,392 1,523,140
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

6. LEASES {CONTINUED)

Group 31 December

Non-current liabilicies
Lease liability

Current liabflities
Lease habdity

311 December

2020
£
760,858 1,204,825
762,282 958,647
1,523,140 2,163,472

(i} Ageing onalysis of lease commitments

Group 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Buildings Other Buildings Other
items items
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non- £ £ £ £
canceilable leases are payable as follows:
Within one year 746,565 157117 941,364 17,283
Later than one year but not iater than fve years 750,145 10.712 1.183,533 21,292
1,496,711 26,429 2,124,897 38,575
Cempany
(éif) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
Right-of-use assets
Year ending 31 Décember 2020 Buildings
£
Opening net boak amount 1,678,054
Additions .
Depreciation charge (438,740}
Closing net book amount 1,239,314
Buildings
Year ending 31 December 2021 £
Opening net book amount 1,239,314
Depreciation charge (421,734)
Closing net book armount 817,580
Laase Liabilities
Year ending 31 December 2020 Buildings
[
Opening net ook ameairt 1,586,306
Additions .
Payments (473,256}
Interest expense 76,340
Mod-fications {5,147}
Closing net book amount 1,184,243
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TQO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DFCFMBER 2021

6. LEASES (CONTINUED)

(iu) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (continued)

Company

¥Year ending 31 December 2021 Buildings

£
Opening net book amount 1,184,243
Payments (473,256)
Inlerest expense 56,068
Modifications {3,167}
Ciosing net book amount 761,888

Lease Liabitlities
31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£ £
Non-current liabilities
Lease llability 323,646 767,055
Current liabilities
Lease liability 438.242 417.188
761,888 1,184,243

Tha falr value of the leases approximates to the values shown above.

() Ageing anolysis of lease commitments

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

Company
Buildings Other Buildings Other
items items
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non- £ £ £ £
cancellable leases are payable as follows:
Within one year 438,242 117,188
Later than one year but rot later than five years 323.646 767,055 -
761,888 1,184,243 -

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

6. LEASES {(CONTINUED)
v) Amounts recogrnsed in the Jncome Statement

The statement of profit ar loss shows the following amounts relatng to leases:

Group
31Dezcember 2021 31 December 2020
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets: £ E
Buildings 963,240 1,316,793
Vehides 14,515 14,654
JEgupment 2987 2905
Total depreciation charge 980,742 1,334,352

Interest expense {ncluded in finance costs) £89,830 (2020; £133,416)

Total cash outflows for leases for the Group in 2021 was £1,098,371 (2020: £1,343.685)

Company
31 Decemher 2021 31 December 2020
Depreciauon charge of nght of use assets: £ £
Buildings 421,734 438,740
Tota! depreciation charge 421,734 438,740

Interest expense {included in finance costs) £56,068 (2020: £76,340)

Tctal cash outflows for leases for the Company in 2021 was £473,256 (2020: £473,256).
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3% DECEMBER 2021

7. INVESTMENTS

Balance at 1 January 2020
Bonus issue of shares

Foreign exchange adjustments

Gain recognised in other comprehensive income
Balance at 3! December 2020

Investment in Protected Media Limited {lsrael)
foreign exchange adjustments

Gamn recggnised in other camprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2021

The Campany has investments in the fol‘'owing subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2021:

Company name

Ordinary Shares

INVESTMENT IN OTHER
SUBSIDIARIES RESERVES

£ £
38,741,708 30,034,195
(28,200,000)
9.002 B
4,323.495 4,323,495
43,074,205 6,157,650
8317.770 :
86,703 -
249,636,659 249,636,659
301,115,277 255,794,349

MNature of Activity

Reglstered Office

Flashtalking ing.

Spongecell Inc.

Flashtalking GmbH

Flashtalking Pty Ltd

Flashtalking Brasit
Marketing Ltda

Flashtalking Pte Ltd

Protected Media
Limited {Israel)

Protected Media Inc,

1060%

100% (subsidiary of
Flashtalk:ng Inc.)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100% (subsidiary of
Protected Medha Ltd
(Israel))

S

Internet advertising

Internet advertising

Internet advert:sing

Internet advertising

Internet advertising

Internet advertising

Advertising fraud
detection specialists

Advertising fraud
detection specialists

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

7. INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Gain in ipvestments
In February 2021, Simplicity Marketing Limited acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Protected Media Limited
{Israel}.  See note 11 for further details.

In August 2021, Mediaocean LLC completed the acquisition of the Flash Topco Limited Groug.  £91,581,908 was
received by Simplicity Marketing Lirmited as capital contribution from Flash Bidco Limited. This was split £43,478.441
to repay the extarnal borrowing and £48,103,467 to settle other expenditure including the share based payments..
The £91,581,908 is nat expected to be repaid and has therefore been treated as capital contribution.

£249,636,659 of the increase in investments in the year relates to the annual fair value adjustment (see Fair Valuation
Measurement below for details), with the remaining £86,703 relating to exchange movements in investments held in
foreign currency.

Valuation method
In 1 January 2020, there was a change in accounting policy.  The Group and Company commenced accounting for
investments in accordance with 1AS 39 and IFRS 13 under the fair value method of accounting.

The change in policy from the cost model to the fair value model is considered to provide mare relevant and reliable
information for users of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 by more accurately
reflecting the value of the Campany's investrnents. The change provides the Company with greater flexibility when
managing capital, including debt and equity funding and shareholders returns.

The fair value adjustment in 2020 was in relation to a change in accounting policy from historic ¢ost less impairment
to the fair vaiue methed.  itwas measured at the reclassification date of 1stJanuary 2021 and applied retrospectively.
The difference between the amartised cost and the fair value was measured at 1 january 2019, with the difference
between them recognised in the revaluation reserve.

This was also measured at 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 with the balance at these
dates recognised as other comprehensive income.

The Group has classified investments as Level 2 (2020 - Leve| 3), as prescribed by IFRS 13, The investments held by
the Group are of the same industry, characteristics and risks, as each entity operates under the same trading business
structure, Therefore, management believe that the reclassification of investments from Level 3 to Level 2 is correct
and disclosure of each individual investment Is not required.

Fair valuation measyrement
For the 2021 reporting year, the vaiue of the investments was calculated based on a detalled fair value analysis

following the acquisition of the Flashtalking Group by Mediaocean LLC.  Multiple sceparios were calculated using
various methodoiogies (including Revenue Allocation, Forecast Benchmarks and EBITDA Multipliers) to support the
valuation,  From this analysis, management selected the scenario which provided the most accurate estimate of the
fair value of the investments held by Simpiicity Marketing Limited at 31 December 202},

To calculate the valuation of the investments held by Simplicity Marketing Limitad, the value of the Company had to
be deducted from the total vatuation of the group headed by Flash Tapceo Limited. The value of the group headed by
Flash Topco Limited was estimated using the purchase price paid by Mediaocean LLC. The scenario selected to value
the Company, was based on an EBITDA Multiplier approach using a combinatian of both management data and data
produced by an independent 3™ party valuation speclalist. The calculation involved using an implied multiple of
14.9x applied to the average estimated annual EBITDA for the Company over the three years 2021 to 2023. The 14.9x
multiple was calculated by dividing the purchase price paid by Medlaocean LLC to acquire the Group, by the average
estimated annual EBITDA for the Group over the three years 2021 to 2023,
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPQRT
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The director presents his strategic report for Simplicky Marketing Limited {the “*Company”) and its subsidiaries {the "Group"} for the
year ended 31 December 2021,

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS
Simphicity Marketing Limited, trading as "Flashtaltking”, is an independent ad serving, measuring and technology company. providing
best in class digita! advertising products. service and support for online advertisers, key media buying and ereative agencies.

Flashtaking's products facifitate the management, delivery and measuring of all forms of digital advertising across desktop, tablet
and mobile. Core aspects indude display {including standard ads, dynamic. nch media, video, HTML 5 and mohbife}, search, sociat
and affiliates.

Flashtaking serves bifl'ons of ad impressions throughout US, European and international markets for the leading marketers and
their advertising agency partrers. Regional offices are iocated in London, Leeds, Connecticut, Cologne, Petah Tikva and Sydney.

RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE
The results for the Groaup, as set out on pages 11 ta 54, show a loss before tax of £11,584,742 {2020: profit of £8.859,328). The total
shareholders’ fiinds of the Group is £73,022,354 (2020: shareholders’ deficit af £9,848,156).

The aperating foss i 2021 15 & direce result of the exception sl costs incurred durng the year relating to the acquisition by Mediaacean
LLC and the business combination with Protected Media Limited (Israel) (see note 22 for further details). The trading petformance
of the Group during 2021 has been successful, The Group contnued to demonstrate growth, with revenues growing year-on-year
whilst protecting the operating margin.  Management befieves the Group is well positioned to grow further in the future by utils:ng
its expertence and technaology to detiver high quality services ta its growang custamer base.

Flash Topes Limited {the group parent company) undertauk two share buy-back transactions in February and March 2020. Owing ta
a faliure by a third party to make certain Compan-és House filings in connection with steps related to the buy-back transactons,
Flash Topco Limited had insufticient distributabile reserves at the point at which the buy-back transactions were undertaken and
they were, therefore, ineffective. Dividends declared were condrtional upon the aforementioned filings having taken effect. As a
result of foreign exchange driven losses having been incurred by Simplicity Marketing Limited between the date of the dividend
being declared and the fihng date, part of the distribution paid by Simplicity Marketng Limited to Flash Bidco Limited was deemed
unlawful,

As 15 tonventiona: in this type of situation, Flash Topce Limited applied to the Court for an order sanctioning & reduction of capital
cancellng the A Grdinary Shares and B1 Ordmary Shares which were the subject of the buy-back transactions on the basis that any
habyity wh-th might have existed on the part of sellers to repay the sums received by thern in connection with the buy-back
transacticns be reieased. The Court Order was granted on the 9th of March 2021 and registered at Companies House on the 17th
of March 2021, at which poins the buy-back transactions were formally cancelled,

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group's perfarmance is impacted by the general economic climate in the USA, UK, mainfand Europe and Australia. This nisk 1s
managed by ensur.ng that the Group operates across a range of markels with a broad cient base,

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS ["KPIs™)

Given the straightforward nature of the businesses, the Group's director 15 of the opinion that analysis using KPIs 15 not necessary
for an understanding of the development, performance or pasition of the businesses, Standard financial statements {income
Statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Fiow Statement) are sufficient to provide information about the financial pasition,
performance and changes in financiat position of the businesses that « useful to awide range of stakeholders.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The digital advertising industry contrnugs to mature and evolve, with advertisers continuing to place increasing emphasis on owning
the data that they use to recognize and communicate with their consumers. The increased focus on data ownership, and the
unwillingness of walled gardens to provide ownership of or access to data, provides substantial momentum for the Company as the
independent alternaiive to walled gardens {ke Google, Facebook, or Amazon,

Additionally, Google’s announcement in respect to ending suppart for 3rd party cookies in Chrome from 2024 has created further
interest in the Company’s offering. As the only independent ad server not reliant on caokies, managernent believes that the Company
will be well positioned to capture share among advertisers who require granular insight Into advertising delivery and performance.

The Company 15 also seeing an increase n clients shifting towards purchasing full-stack offerings that can meet all needs in 2 single
package, rather than buying multiple "point solutions™ that each serve & specific use. With the Company having invested substantially
over the past five years in expand«ng its praduct set, management beheves that this shift in buying pattern results is a competitive
advantage. as the Company now has competitive products across DCO, primary ad serving, video, identity, advanced analytics, and
verification

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED -2-
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED}

In August 2021, Flashtatking was acquired by Mediaotean LLC. a long standing and successful AdTech company. The acquistion
came at a critical inflection point for the industry, as marketers moved towards mare open and intercperable solutions. Together,
the combined entities have established the leading independent technology platform for omnichannel advertising The
complementary technologies of the two companles have enabled customers to benefit from comprehensive and future-forward
solutions for global strategic planning, omnichanne! media management and ciosed ecosysterns optimisation.

STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING (SECR}
Large organisations are now cbliged to report publicly on their energy use and carbon emissions.  Details of this is disclosed in the
financial statements of Flash Topco Limited, the parent company of Simpliaty Marketing Limited.

DIRECTOR’S SFCTION 472 STATEMENT
The Directar of the company must act In accordance with a set of general dutes, as deta-led in section 172 of the UK Companies Act
2006, summarised as follows:

‘Adirector of a company must actin the way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the company
for the benefit of its shareholders as a whole and, in doing se have regard (amaongst other matters) to:

+  the likely consequences of any decisions in the long term;

» the interest of the company's employees;

« the need to foster the company's business retationships with suppliers, customers and others;

« the impact of the company's operations on the community and environment:

e the desirability of the company mamntaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and

« the need to act fairly as between the shareholders of the company.’

The director fulfils these duties as follows:

The Company has a long-term strategic plan that effectvely identsfies, evaluates and mitigates the risks which the Company faces,
ensuring they are sufficiently considered and, if apphcable, hedged against for the future. The director will invariably delegate day-
to-day management and decision making Lo executive management, but will ensure that management is acting in accordance with
the strategy and plans agreed by the board,

The beard recognises that employees are centrat to the long-term success of the Cempany. The Company systematically provides
employees with information on matters of concern to them. consulting themn or thewr representatives regularly. so that their views
can be taken into account when making decisions that are likely to affect they interests. Employee involvement in the Company is
encouraged, as achieving a cammon awareness on the part of ail employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the
Company plays a8 major role in maintaining its prosperity. The Company encourages the involvement of employees by means of
regular meetings to keep them informed of the Company's progress. The Company is committed 1o employment policies, which
follow best practice, based on egual oppartunitres for all employees, irrespective of sex, race, colour, disability or sexual orientation.

5 lationshi '

The dwector appreciates the importance of fostering business relationships with key stakehoiders, such as custamers and supphers,
and focus on the maintenance and growth of these relationships in thewr declsion-making and strategic planning. The Company
employs dedicated relationship managers to foster these relationships which alsa ensures the bozrd has a high degree of visibility
to take stakeholder considerations inta account.

Community and environment

The Company's approach is to use its position of strength to ensure it 55 an asset to the communities and peaple with which it
interacts. The board ensures significant consideration is given to the impact of the Company's operations on the community and
anvironment In their decision-making. The Company strives o create positive change in reducing the environmental impact of its
businesses and to meet the highest fevel of health and szfety and environmental standards, whilst maintaining effective and

continumg business practices,

Shareholders

The board recognises the importance of regular and open dialogue with the shareho-ders and the need to ensure the strategy and
goals of the Company are effectively communicated to themn. Feedback on these plans and objectives is welcomed by the directar
and major business decisions are made closely and with the approval of the shareholders,
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Signed

Mr |. Nardone
Company directar

Approved by the director on 16 Oecember 2022
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REFORT
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The director presents h:s report and the audited financial statements of the Group and Company for the year ended
31 December 2021,

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The loss for the financel year amaunted to £6,233,923 (2020 profit of £5,650.094). During the year a dvidend of £1,886,723 was
paid to Flash Bidco Limited (2020: £48,777,618).

The net 25sets position at the year end was driven by the capital contribution from Mediaocean LLC and the fair value uplift on
investments.

GOING CONCERN

The director is required to prepare the fnancial statements cn the going concern basis, unless it 15 inapprogriate to presume
Simplicity Marketing Limited and its subsidiaries wilt continure in business. The Groupis in a positive net assets position, has a positive
cash balance at the balance sheet date and expects positive cashfiow in the 12 months. Management has prepared cash flow
forecasts thraugh to December 2023 that show the Group will generate positive cash flow over this penod. These forecasts have
been stress tested to include a severe but plaus:ble downside scenario, even under these conditions the Group remains able to fund
ongoing trading liquidity requirements from within existing cash resources for a period of at feast 12 months from the date of signing
the financial statements. The dwector therefare has no concerns with regards to the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

As disclosed in Note 1, the Group was acquired by Mediaocean LLC in August 2021 and now forms part of an enlarged group.
OceanKey {U.5.} Il Corp. {"QOceanKey) was formed on August 5, 2021, as a US limized liability company to facilitate the acquisition of
Mediaocean LLC. DceanKey and Mediaocean LLC were acquired by funds owned by CVC Capital Partners and TA Associates which
are registered in the United States of America. Oceankey entered into a Credit Agreement with a financial institution that includes a
first and second lien term note payable and a revolving line of credit. These borrowings are subject to certain covenants and are
secured by substantially ali of the assets of OceanKey and its subsidiaries which include the Growp. There are curvently no borrowings
against the revolving line of credit. and OceanKey is currently in compliance with all of its covenants.

The director has concluded that the enlarged Group is able to continue as a going concern due to cash on-hand, forecast cash
generated from operations, and the revolving line of credst for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial
statements and that the risk of the Group's assets being called as security is remote

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's operations expose It to a variety of financlal risks that Include foreign exchange nsk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
risk. The Group has a risk managernent programme in place that seeks tc kmit the adverse effect on the financial performance of
the Group.

Given the size of the Group, the director has not delegated the responsibility of menitoring financial risk management to a sub
comimittee of the board. The policies set by the director are implernented by the Group's finance department.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group has assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, mainly US Daflar, Euro. and Austral:ian Dollar. The Group
does not use derivative financiat instruments to manage the fisk of fluctuating exchange rates, so no hedge accounting 1s appried.
The Group has in place a foreign exchange policy and wiil reconsider the appropriateness of this pohcy should the Group's operat:ons
change in size or nature.

CREDIT RISK

The Group has no significant concentration of credd risk. Cash and cash equivalents are de pos-ted within high-credit quality finanaal
institutions and trade debtors are due principally from weli-established customers In spite of the well-establ:shed customer base,
there is still a risk as the customer may default on the payment of thelr debts and the Group mitigates this nsk by performing credit
risk assessments on all of its potential customers, prior to the sale being made.

LIQUIDITY RISK
The Group actively manages its finances to ensure that it has sufficient avaiiable funds for its operations.

INTEREST RISK
The Group has both interest-bearing assets, which are generatly held at fioating rates, and interest-bearing l:abilities, whi¢h are

generally held at fixed rates. The Group momtors its portfalio of interest-bearing assets and liabilities and their finanaal wmpact. The
Group will reconsider the appropriate structure of (s portfolio should the Group’s operations change in size or nature.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED  -s-
Company number 04339257



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPORT
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

DIRECTORS
The directors wha served the Company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial staterments
were:

Mr | Meeks (Resigned on 31" August 2021)
Mr |. Seigler (Resigned an 31* August 2021}
Mr |. Nardone

STRATEGIC REPORT
Please refer to the Strategic Report on pages 210 4.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The Group conlinues to invest in the development of staff and new technology in order to posinon the Company for future growth.
The Company intends to continue to expand ks product capabilities, with investrments being made in areas seen as offering strategic
importance and growth. Management believes that there are various growth opportunities in the market, both organic and through
acquisitions, which they will continue 10 explore in the year ahead.

In August 2021, Mediaccean LLC completed the acquisition of all of the issued share capital of Flash Topco Umited As & result of
this acquisition, the new ultimate parent company of the Groug is OceanKey {U.5)} Il Corp., a limited fiability company in the United
States of America. Mediaocean LLC are a successful AdTech company providing a platform for omnighannel advertising, with more
than $200 billion in annualised media spend managed through their pfatform.

EMPLOYMENT OF DISABLED PERSONS

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the respective aptitudes and abilines
of the applicant concesned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled. every effort ks made to ensure that their
employment with the Group continues and the appropriate training is arranged. It Is the policy of the Group that the training, career
development and promotion of a disabled person should, as far as possible, be identical to that of a person wha does not suffer
fram a disability. The Graup did rot employ any disabled persans during the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

Consultation with employees or their managers has continued at all levels, with the aim of ensuring that views are taken into account
when decisions are made that are likely to affect their interests. Al employees are aware of the objectives, targets and performance
of their department and of financial performance of the Group as 2 whole and are rewarded accarding to the results of both through
an annual bonus scheme. Communicatian with all employees continues through emaiy, internal open meetings, briefing groups and
video conferencing.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR'S RESPONS!BILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The director is responsible far preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulaten.

Company law requires the director to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the director has prepared
the Group and the Company financial staternents in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Under Company law, a director must npt approve the financeal statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing the financia:
statements, the director is required to:

+  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

»  state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed, subject tg any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

«  make judgements ang accounting estimates that are reasanable and prudent, and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
Cornpany will continue in business.

The director is responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED .
Company number 04339257



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPORT
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The girector is also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s and
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Company and
enable them to ensure that the financiat statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

DIRECTOR'S CONFIRMATIONS
In the case of each director in office at the date the director's reportis approved:

« 5o far as the director 1s aware, there is no relevant auddt infonnation of which the Group's and Company's auditors are
unaware; and

«  they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director i order to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Group’s and Company's auditors are aware of that information.

DIRECTOR'S INDEMNITY

As permitted by the Articles of Associaton, the director has the benefit of an indemnity, which is a qualifying third-party indemnity
as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force throughout the tenure of each director during the
last financial year and is currently in force. The Company also purchased and maintasned throughout the financial year Directors
and Officers liability insurance in respect of ttself and its director.

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS
The auditors, PricewaterhcuseCaopers LLP, have indicated their wiliingness to continue in office and a resolution concerning their
re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirm that:
. so far as each director is aware, there is no retevant audit :nformation of which the Company's auditors are unaware; and

= each diractor has taken all steps that they aught to have taken as a directar to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Cempany's auditors are aware of that information.

The financial statements on pages 11 to 64 were approved by the Director on 16 Decemnber 2022
Registered office;

Suite 1

7" Floor

S0 Broadway
Londen

Sigred

Mr ] Mardone
16 Decernber 2022

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

In our opinion. Smplicity Marketing Limited's group financial statements and Company financial statements {the “financial
sfaternents’:

« give atrue and Fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company’s affalrs as at 31 December 2023 and of the group's loss
and the Group's and Company's cash flows for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted internationat accounting standards, and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2636.

We have audted the financia! statements, included within the financial statements (the “Annual Report”), which comphise: the
consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2021; the consolsdated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated and Company statements of cash flows and the consotidated and Company statements
of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial staternents, which include a descripton of the significant
accounting policies,

Basis for opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditng (UK) (fi5As (UKY) and applicable faw, Our
responsiblities under |SAs (UK} are further described in the Auditors' responsib lites for the audit of the financ 2l statements section
of gur report We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained mdependent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financ:al
statements in the UX, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fuifilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not idenbfied any materal uhcertanties relating to events or conditions that,
individuaily or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Company’s abilty to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least rwelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for 1ssue.

In auditing the financial statemnents, we have concluded that the director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the finarical statements 13 apprapr.ate.

However. because naot al! future events or condrtions can be predicted, this conclusion Is not a guarantee as to the Group's and the
Company's ability ta continue as a gotng cancern,

Our responsibiiities and the responsibilities of the director with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this report.

Repaorting on other information

The other information comprises al: of the infarrnation in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditory’
repart therean. The director is respons:ble for the other mformat:on. CQur apinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and. accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicity stated :n this
repart, any form of assurance thereon.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Campany number 04339257



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained n the audit, or
atherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is 3 material misstatement of the financal statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenial misstatement
of this other information, we are required to reposnt that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Director’s Report, we also considered whether the disctosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions and
matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Director's Report

In our apinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given inthe Strategic Report and Director's
Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable fegal requirements,

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Director’s Repart.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibility of the director for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the statement of director's responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the director {s respansible
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view. The director is also responsible for such internal contraf as they determine is necessary to enable the preparaton
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financia! statements, the director is responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the divector either intends to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the oudit of the financial statements

Dur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinian. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is nat a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK} will always detact a material
misstaternent when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are cansidered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financal
statements.

trregularities. including fraud, are instances of non-comphiance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which
our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed betow.

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principa! risks of non-compliance with laws and
regulations related to adherence to data protection requirements in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates and helds data,
and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered
those laws and regulations that have a directimpact on the financia! statements such as the Companies Act 2006 and tax legislation.
we evaluated management's incentives and apportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements {including the risk
of averride of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate journal entries to manipulate
financial results and management bias in accounting estimates and judgements.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257 %



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TCQ THE MEMBERS OF SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Audit procedures performed by the engagement team induded:

» Discussions with management n¢luding consideration of known or suspected instances of non-complisnce with laws and
regulations and fraud;

»  Addressing the risk of management override of internat controls, including testing of journal entries {in particiar, journal entries
posted with an unusual account combination);

« Tasting of assumptwons and judgements made by management in making significant accounting estimates; and

» Reviewing financial statement disciosures and testing to supporting documentation.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions refiected in the financial statements.
Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud i higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 1s located on the FRC'S website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities, This descripton forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use af this report

This report, sncluding the opinicns, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or Lo any other persen to whom this report is shown or inte whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Compamies Act 2006 we are required to repont to you If, In our opinion:

+ we have not cbtained all the :nformation and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been rece-ved
fram branches not vis ted by us; or

* certain disclosures of director's remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising frem this responsibility.

A\ —
'LLQ

David Braddy (Senior Statutary Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Aud+tors
London

16 Decernber 2022

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Note £k £

Revenue 18 66,767,908 62,391,635
Cast of Sales 19 (8,950.411) (7.559,976)
Gross Profit 57.817.497 54,831,659
Selling and markeung costs 19 (8,161,552) (6,725,232)
Administrative expenses 19 {35.310811) {12,794,339)
Technical support and development 19 (24,487,088) {23,865,939)
Operating (Loss)/Profit {10,141,954) 11,446,149
Fiance income 19 1,325 1,104
Finance costs 14 o .e44113 (2,587,925)
(Loss)}/Profit hefore income tax (11.584,742) 8,859,328
intome tax 14 5.350.819 {3.209,234)
(Loss) Profit for the financial year (6,223,923) 5,650,094

Alt of the activities of the Group are classed as continuing.
The Company has taken advanitage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to pubish its own Income statement.

There is no material difference between the (loss)/profit before income tax and the {loss)/profu for the financia! year
stated above and their historical cost equivalents.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257 I



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT CF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

hote
{Loss)/Profit for financial year
Other comprehensive expense items
that may be reclassified to profit ar loss;
Foreign currency translation adjustments 17

Tetal comprehensive (expenselincome
for the year

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257 RTH

31 Decemnber

31 December

2021 2020
£ £
(6,233,923} 5.650.094
(533.062) (645,173)
{6,766,985) 5,004,921




SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Note £ ek

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assats a 22,031,661 12,844,499
Property, piant and equ:pment L1 843,940 823,420
Right-of-use gssets & 1,538,216 2155013
Deferred tax assets 14 9,409,433 2223819
Total non-Current assets 33.823.250 18,046,751
Current Assets
Trade and vrher receivables 8 63,214,348 20,278,706
Cash and cash equivalents 9 4,654,943 10,347,686
Currentincome tax assets 14 450,637 -
Total current assets 68,315,928 30,626,392
Total assets 102,143,378 48,673,143
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 4] - 42,967,497
Contingent and deferred consideration 12 2,611,789 1.076,663
Deferred tax liabiiities 14 i.313.011 1,125,213
Lease liabilities & 760,858 1,204,825
Totol non-current kobifities 4,685,658 46,374,198
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 20,317,369 10,307,533
Borrow:ngs 10 - 428,731
Lease liabilities & 762,282 958.647
Contingent and deferred consideration 12 3355515 -
Corporation tax payable 14 - 452,230
Total current fiobiities 24,435,166 12,147,141
Total liabilities 29,120,824 58,521,339
NET ASSETS/{LIABIITIES) 73,022,354 {9,848,196)
EQUITY
Share captal and share premium 77 415 A5
Share options reserve 17 - 7,427,248
Capital contribution 17 91,581,908 =
Other reserves 17 (27,800,130) (27,267,068}
Retained E&rniNgs 17 9,240,161 9,591,217
TOTAL EQLNTY 73,022,354 (9,848,196)

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257 .13,



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 11 to 64 were approved and authorised for issue by the Director on 16 December
2022.

Mr J. Nardone
16 December 2022

Comgany registration number: 04338257

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257 4.



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Note £ E

ASSETS
Non-current assets .
Intangible assets A 5,456,593 4,336,118
Property, plant and equipment 5 620,352 6345579
Right-of-use assets 5 817.580 1,239,314
Investments 7 301,115,277 43,074,205
Deferred tax asset 14 329054 269.836
Total non-current assets 308,338,855 49,554,052
Current Assets .
Trade and other receivables 8 53,813,715 25,130,483
Cash and cash equivalents ] 1,255,514 5,698,909
Total current ossets 55,069,229 30,828,392
Total assets 363,408,085 80,333,444
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabifities
Borrowings L] - 42,967.497
Contingent and deferred consideration 12 2,611,789 1,076,663
Deferred tax liabilities 14 1,125,613 887,622
Lease habilicies & 323,646 767,055
Tota! non-current liabilities 4,061,048 45,698,837
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 3.979,138 16,770,262
Borrowings 10 R 428,731
Contingent and deferred consideration 12 3,355,515 =
Lease Liabilities 6 438,242 417,188
Corporation tax payable 14 472,454 228,630°
Tota! current habriitres .. 8245349 17.844,811
Total {iabitities - 12,306,397 63,543,648
NET ASSETS 351,101,688 16,839,796
EQLITY .
Share capital and share premium 17 415 o X41‘§‘
Share options reserve 17 af2.49
Capital contribution 17 91,581,908 .
Other reserves 17 255,794,349 6,157,690
Relained earnings 17 3,725,016 16,274,200
TOTAL EQUITY 351,101,688 16,839,796

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these finangial statements. The parent company has elected to take
the $408 exempton and as aresult it ss exempt from the requirement to publish its individuai profit and 18ss account
and the related notes. The Company's foss for 2021 was £4,662.461 (the Company's profit for 2020 was £9,039,299).

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
BT

Company number 04339257



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

The financial statements on pages 11 to 64 were approved and authorised for issue by the Director on 16 Decernber
2022

Mr ). Nardone
16 December 2022

Company registration humber: (4339257

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

Company number 04339257
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Balance at 1 January
2020

Broht for financial
year

Crher comprehensive
expense

Tatal comprehensive
income for the year

Bonus issue of shares
Reduction n ¢apital
Share based scheme
changes

Dividends paid
Cumulative translation
adjustment

Balance at 31
December 2020

Loss for financial year
Other comprehensive
expense

Total comprehensive
expense for the year

Capital contribution
Share based scheme
charge

Dividends paid
Share based scheme
changes

Balance at 31
December 2021

Note

17

17
17
17

1?
17

17
17
17
7

Share Share Capital Other fletained .
) . Total equity
caphal and option centribution reserves earnings
share reserve
premium
£ £ £ £ £ £
8,765,462 6,830,352 B 1,578,105 16,763,781 33,337,700
- 5,430,094 5,650,094
. . {645,173) . {645,173}
- - - (645,173) $,650.094 5,004,921
28,200,000 - - 28,200,000) -
(36,965,047} : 36,965,047 -
. 596.888 - - - 596,888
- - (44,177,618} {48,777.618)
- §10.087) {10,087}
415 7.427,240 - (27,267.068) 8,991,237 {9,848,196)
A e S ———— —— A ——
. . (6.233.923) 16.233,923)
533060 - (533.062)
. . - 1533,062} (6,233,923) {6,766,985)
- 91.581,908 - 91,561,908
995,245 - 995,245
- - (1.886,723) (1,886,723)
(8.422,485) 7.369,550 (1,052.895)
415 - 91,581,908 (27.800,130) 9,240,161 73,022,354

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

Company number 04339257
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Balance at 1 january 2020

Prafit for finantial year
Fair value gain - other
comprehensive incume

Tota) comprehensive
income for the year

Reduction in share ¢apital
Bonwus issue

Dividends pawd

Share based scheme charges
Balance at 31 December
2020

Loss for the Rnancdial year
fair value gam - other
tomprehensive income

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Capual contribution
Dnadends perd

Share based scheme tharges
Share based stheme
changes

Balance at 31 December
2029

Hote

»
"

"
7
17
”

7
17

17

7

Share Share Capital Qther Retained Total equity
capital and option contribution reserves ®arnings
share reserve
premium
£ £ L3 £ £ £
£,765.462 345,685 ~ 30,034,195 13,047,472 52,192,814
9,029,299 9,039,299
- 4,323,495 4,323,495
. 4,323,495 9,039,259 13,362,754
(36,965.047) 36,965,047
28200020 - 128,200,000) - -
- - - - 48.777,618) (48,727.6183)
61,838 - 61,806
415 407,491 - 6,157.6%0 10,274,200 16,839,756
. 14,662,461} {4,562,461)
- - 249,638 655 - 248,626/65%
- 249,636,659 (4,662,461) 244,974,198
91,581,508 - - 91,581,908
- - {1.886,723) (1.886.723)
22357 - - 22.357
(429,843} . - {429.848)
95 - 91.581,908 255,794,349 3,725016 351,101,688

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

Company number 04339257
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

31 Decernber 31 December
2021 2020
Note £ £

Cash flows (used in)/generated from
operating activities
Cash generated {used in)/generated from 21 (35,844,510) 15,7551 71
operations
Income taxes paid (2,085,073) (1,980,152}
Net'c::'sh foutfliow)/inflow fram nparating (37,629,583) 13,775,019
octivities
Cash flows {used in)/generated from
investing activities
Acquisition of business | (2,945,192} -
Contingent consideration payments (1,803,637} -
Payments for property, plant and equipment 5 {749,885} (556,312}
Payment for software development costs 4 (3,917,494} 13,355,208)
Interest rece:ved 1,325 1,104
Net cash outfiow from investing octivities {9,414,883) (3,910,416)
Cash flows generated from/(used in)
tinancing activities
Capital contrihution from Mediaacean LLC 17 48,103,467
Canceliation of share options {1,052,895)
Proceeds from borrowings 10 . 24,868,888
Repayment of borrowhngs 0 (899,865} (3.075,796)
Principal element of lease payments & {1.009,147} 1,210,268}
Interest paid {1,603,120) [2,562,335)
Dividends paid {1,886,723) (23.766,657)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing
activitles 41,651,723 [5,746,168)
Net{decreasej/increase in cash and cash (5.692,743) 4,118,435
equivalents
Cash and ca;h equivalents at the beginning 9 10,347,686 6.229.251
of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of 9 4,654,943 10,347,686

financial year

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257

L19.



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note
Cash flows (used in)/ganerated from
operating actlivitles
Cash {used in)/generated from operations 21
Incame taxes paid
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
activities

Cash flows (used in)/generated from

Investing activities

Acquisition of business

Contingent consideration payments

Payments far property, plant and equipment 5
Payment for software develapment costs 4
Intarest received

Ner cash outflaw from investing activities

Cash flows generated from/used in)
financing activitles

Capital contribution from tMediaccean LLC "
Cancellation of share cptions

Proceeds from borrowings ]
Repayment of borrowings 10
Principal element of lease payments [
Interest paid

Dividends paid

Dividends received

Net cash infiow/(autflow) fram financing
activitles

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 9
Financial year

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

Company number 04339257
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31 December 31December

2021 2020
£ £
(37,349511) $,881,924
{750.000) {532,050)
{38,099 511) 9,449,874
(2,945,192)
(1.803,637) -
{544,285) {475,792}
[3.917.493) (3,355,208}
= = NP o581
{9.210.607) {3.830.419)
48,103,467
(429.848}
. 24,868,888
{899.865) {3,075.796)
(417,188) {396,916}
(1,603,120) (2.430.907)
(1.B86.723) (23,766.657)
. 4,346,072
42,866,723 {455.316)
(4,443,395} 5,164,132
5.698.90% 534,706
1,255,514 5,698,909




SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The operating businesses within the Group, trading as “Flashtalking”, are independent ad serving, measuring and
technology companies providing best-in-class digital advertising products, service and support for online advertisers,
key media buying and creative agencies. The Company is a private limited company limited by shares, incorporated
on 12 December 2001 and damiciled in United Kingdom, with a registered address at Suite 1, 7™ Floor, 50 Broadway,
London, SW1H 0BL.

In August 2021 Mediaocean LLC completed the acquisition of the Flashtalking group, and as a result the Group now
forms part of the Mediaocean LLC group of companies.

These Group and Company financial statements were authorised for issue by the Director on 16 December 2022,
2. SUMMARY CF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied.

2.1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and Company have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted
Internaticnal Accounting Standards in conformity with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006, The financial
statements are presented in Pounds Sterling and have been prepared under the historical cost and fair value model
in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFR5})
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates which have been laid out in note 3. Accounting policies have
been applied consistently, other than where new policies have been adopted.

Going concern

The director is required to prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to
presume Simplicity Marketing Limited and its subsidiaries will continue in business. The Group is in a positive net
assels position, has a positive cash balance at the balance sheet date and expects paositive cashflow in the 12 months.
Management has prepared cash flow forecasts through to December 2023 that show the Group will continue to
generate positive cash flow over this period. These forecasts have been stress tested to include a severe but pfausible
downside scenario, even under these conditions the Group remains able to fund ongolng trading liquidity
requirements from within existing cash resources for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the
financial statements. The director therefore has no concerns with regards to the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern,

As disclosed in Note 1, the Group was acquired by Mediaocean LLC in August 2021 and now forms part of an enlarged
group. Oceankey (U.5.) 11 Corp. ("OceanKey") was formed on August 5, 2021, as a US limited liability company to
facilitate the acquisition of Mediaocean LLC. QceanKey and Mediaocean LLC were acquired by funds owned by CVC
Capital Partners and TA Associates which are registered in the United States of America. OceanKey entered into a
Credit Agreament with a financizl institution that includes a first and second lien term note payable and a revolving
line of credit, These borrowings are subject to certain covenants and are secured by substantially ali of the assets of
OceanKey and its subsidiaries which include the Group. There are currently no borrowings against the revolving line
of credit, and OceanKey is currently in compliance with all of its covenants.

The director has concluded that the enlarged Group is able to continue as a going concern due to cash on-hand,

forecast cash generated from operations, and the revolving line of credit for a period of at least 12 manths from the
date of signing the financial statements and that the risk of the Group's assets being called as security is remate,

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257 2



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Changes {n occounting policy and disclosures
New ond amended standards and interpretations effective in the year for the Group and Compaony

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments far the first tsime for its annual reporting period
commenging January 1, 2021:

» Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in LFRS Standards

s COVID.19 Related Rent concassions {Amendment to IFRS 16)
+ Interest Rate Benchmark Reform {Amendments to IFRS 9, 145 39 and IFRS 7)

The above new standards and amendments applicable for the year are not deemed to have a material impact on
the financial statements of Simplicity Marketing Limited.

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2021 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expecied to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeabile future transactions.

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statemerus of the Company and all of its subsidiary
undertakings made up to the relevant year end. The subsidiary undertakings' financial years are coterminous with
those of the Company.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variabte returns from its involvernent with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

2.3. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue represents the amounts receivable for advertising services provided in the normal course of business, net
of VAT and other sales related taxes. Revenue recognition is based on the satisfaction of performance obligations
and an assessment of when control js transferred to the customer.  ltis recognised in a way that depicts the
transfer of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the cansideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those services.  Transaction price is allocated to each performanice obligatlon on the
basis of the relative selling prices of each distinct service promised in the contract,

Step 1: Identify the contract with a customer

Step 2: identify the performance abligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price te the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise the revenue when (or as} the Group satisfies 5 performance abligation

Control of a service is obtained when the customer has the ability to cbtain substantially all the benefits from the
service.

Customer contracts vary across the Group and contain a variety of performance obligations.  Under IFR515, the

Group must evaluate whether the goods or services are transferred over time or at a point in time for each
performance obligation.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED - 22-
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
23. REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

A summary of how the key classes of revenue are recognised is provided below:

Ad-serving Pointin time, based on number of impressions served within the period
Analytics Point in time, on delivery of report

Production Point in time, on release of digital advert to client

Verification Point in time, based on number of impressions served within the period

The transacticn price is determined by the agreed terms of the contract.  For the Ad-serving and Verification
revenue streams, this is dependent on the number of impressions served within the period.  Some customers
purchase a fixed fee package which includes a set number of impressions.  in these instances, the transaction
price is increased by any additional impressions served.

2.4. SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reparted in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operanng decision-maker, who is respens:ble for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive management team. The Group has
identified one operating segment under IFRS 8.

2.5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
{a) Research and development expenditure

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Directly attributable costs incurred on development
projects (relating to the design and testing of new or improved products} are recognised as intangible assets when
the following criteria are fulfilled:

i. it is technically feasible to complete the intangitle asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
i. management intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
iii. there is an abitity to use or sell the intangible asset;
iv. it can be demanstrated how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
V. adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and
vi.  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised include the product development employee costs and related
management time. Research and development expenditure is amortised over the useful economic life of 3 years.

(b} Computer software

Acquired computer software products are capitalised along with the casts incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of between 12 months and 3 years.
Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED 23
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(c) Gaodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is mcluded in intangible assets. Goodwsil is not amortised but is tested
annually for impairment, or maore frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicated that it might be impaired
and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment lasses,

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impalrment testing. The allocation is made to thase
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating groups that are expected to benefit from the business
combination In which the goodwili arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, being the operating segment {see note 4).

{0) Trodemorks, customer relotionships ond non-compete ogreements

Trademarks, customer relatsonships and non-compete agreements acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have a firvte useful life and are subsequently carrled at cost less
accumulated amortisation.  These cpsts are amortised over their estimated usefuf lives of between 12 months and
10 years,

(e} Devefoped Technology

Developed technology comprises of the intellectual property acquired in a business combination and recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date.  They have a finite usefui iife and are subsequently carried at cost less accumu'ated
amortisation. Developed technology assets are amortised over their estimated useful economic lives of between 3
and 15 years.

2.6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUUPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historica! cost less accumuated depreclation. Depreciation is provided
on alt property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of each
asset, on a straight-line basis over its expected usefu! life as follows, other than fixtures and fittings which are
depreciated on a reducing balance basis:

s leasehold property: over the term of the lease

*  Computer equipment: 2 years

*«  Fixtures and fittings 3 years

The assets’ residual vafues and useful fives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An
asset's carrying amount is written down smmediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than as esumated recoverable amount.

2.7. TAXATION

the Company is managed and controlted :n tha Un'ted Kingdom and, consequently, is tax resident in the United
Kingdam.

Current tax is calculated on the profits of the period. Current tax is determ:ned wsing tax rates {and laws) that have
been enacted cor substantively enacted by the balance sheet date,
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

2.7. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liabjlity method, on temporary d:.fferences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Consolidated Financial Statements. However, if the deferred
tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or lighility in a transaction, ather than a business combination, that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected ta apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised. or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if the tax relates to items that
are credited or charged. in the same or a different periad, in cther comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 1s a legaily enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intentien to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.8. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. They are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than twelve months after the balance sheet date. A provisicn for impairment of trade receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group wilf not be able to coliect all amounts due according to
the ariginal contractual terms. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptey or financial reorganisation, and default or delinguency in payments are considered Indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired.

The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of a provision account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income staterment within selling and
marketing costs. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the provision account in trade
receivables, Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against selling and marketing costs
in the income statement.

The Group applies the IFRS § simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a peried of 36 months and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect the current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivable.

2.9, ACCRUED INCOME

Accrved income are amounts due fram customers for services performed and which have not yet been invoiced under
existing agreements.

Accrued income is recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less provision for impalrment. Provision for impairment Is determined, when applicable, when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED ™%
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.10. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

{a) Pension abligations
The Group operates defined contribution plans. A defined contributton is 2 pension plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into an independently administrated pension fund.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
asgsets to pay all employees the banefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

The contributions are recagnised as an employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

(b) Share-based payment transactions

The Group and Company operate equity-settled share-based compensation plans. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the share options is recognised as an expense, The total amount to be
expensed over the estimated vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-rnarket vesting conditions (for example, profitability).

Modifications of the performance conditions are accounted for as a modification under IFRS 2. In particular, where a
muodification increases the fair value of the equity instruments granted, the Group includes the incremental fair value
granted in the measurement of the amount recognised for the services received aver the remainder of the vesting
periog.

(¢} Accrued annual leave
The Group has recognised a proviston for accrued, unused annual leave. The provision is measured as the amount
which would bie paid if settled 71 full and 1s presented as Trade and other payables in the balance sheet.

2.11. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

a} Functional and presentGtion currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The Cansolidated Financial
Statemnents are presented in Britsh Pound (GBP), wh:ch 15 the Company's functional and presentation currency.

{b} Transaction bolances

Foreign currency transactions are translated 1nto the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions, Foreign exchange gains and losses result:ng from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and hab:dities deneminated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

(C} Group campanies

The results and financial pesition of all the Group's entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinfiavonary
aconomy)} that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as fallows:

(i} assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the clos:ng exchange rate at the date of
that balance sheet;

(ii} income and expenses far each income statement are transtated at average exchange rates unless this average 1s
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the date of the transaction; and
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YFAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF 5IGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.11. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (CONTINUED}
(ili) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of egtiity.

On consclidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net qualifying investment in foreign
operations are taken to shareholders’ equity.

The Group and Campany has availed of the exemption it IFRS |, whereby the cumulative translation differences for
alt foreign operations were deemed to be reset to zero at the date of transition to IFRS.

2.12. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Both the Company and Group's objectives, when managing capital, are to safeguard the ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for ather stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.,

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company and Group can adjust the number of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

During 2021, the Group's capital management strategy changed from a gearing ratio basis to a dividends and
shargholders returns basis, The reason for this change was because the Group was acquired by Mediaocean LLC
in August 2021. A gearing ratio strategy was no longer applicable due to all outstanding external debt within the
Group being repaid by Mediaocean LLC upon acquisition.

2.13, LEASES

At inception of a contract, it is assessed whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

The Group and emtity will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except far the short-term |eases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12
months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group and Company recogn:ses the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight line basis over the term of the lease, unless another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which the economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readdy determined, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability Is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, iease payments made
at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct casts. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the asset.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.13. LEASES (CONTINUED)
(i) The Groups leasing acuvitres and how these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, vehicles and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 12
months to 5 years but may have extension aptions as described in (v} below.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components, The Group sliccates the consideration in the contract
to the lease and non-iease cornponents based on their relative stand-alone prices.

However, for leases of real astate far which the Group is a lessee, it hias elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and Instead accounts far these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negobated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of d-fferent terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than security Interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Lease assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a nght-af-use asset and a corresponding hability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arisng from a lease are nit.alty measured on a present vaiue basis. Lease (iabilities inciude the
net present value of the following lease payments:

- Fixed payments {including in-substance fixed paymants), 1es$ any lease incent ves receivable

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also not included in the measuremeant
of the liabiity.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannct be readily
deterrnined, which Is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of simifar value
of the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. The discount
rate applied to the leases varied between 3.88% and 4.95%

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

- Where possible, uses recent third-party flnancing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted tc
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received

- Uses a build-up approach that stares with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held, and

- Makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

The Group is axposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate. which are
not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or
rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over

the lease period 50 as Lo produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
perlod.
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.13. LEASES (CONTINUED)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term and low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT
equipment and small items of office furniture.

{ii} Extension gnd termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases across the Group. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group's operations. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

2.14, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise tash at bank and in hand and shart-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less.

2.15.SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2,16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

From 1 january 2020, there was a change in the accounting policy for accounting for investments in subsidiaries in
accordance with 1AS 38, under the fair value method of accounting. This change was applied retrospectively, such that
the comparative figures at 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 were updated accordingly as if this policy had been
in force at those dates.

The change in policy is considered to provide more relevant and reliable information to users of the financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 by mere accurately reflecting the value of the Company’s
investments. The change in policy is also deemed to provide the entity with greater flexibility with regards to
managing capital, including debt and equity funding and shareholders returns. As the Group is a privately owned tech
company, the investment values can fluctuate very rapidly when compared to putlicly traded competitors and/or
market activity. Thus, it is deemed that carrying these assets at fair value will provide a more accurate reflection of
the investments’ fair market value when compared to historic cost.

For the 2021 reporting year, the fair value of the investments was calculated based on a detailed analysis following

the acquisition of the Group by Mediaocean LLC (see note 7 for further details). The fair value movement at this date
is recognised as other comprehensive income,
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.17.TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.1B. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES
Interest income and expenses are recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

2,19. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional iterns are material non-recurring items that derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary
activities of the Group and Company and which individuaily or, if of a similar type, in aggregate, are separately
disclosed by virtue of their size or incidence. Such items may include acquisition related costs, litigation costs and
settlement or one-off costs where separate identificaticn is important to gain an understanding of the financial
statements. Judgement is used by the Group in assessing the particufar items which should be disclosed in the income
statement and related notes as exceptional iterns,

2.20. PROVISIONS

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Group and Company has a present legal or constructive obligat:en
as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likethood of an
outflow with respect ta any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present va'ue of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2,21, BORROWINGS

Borrowngs are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value s
recognised Inthe income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Borrowings
are classified as current lisbilicies unless the Group ar Company has an uncenditional right t¢ defer settlement of the
hability for at least 12 months afier the end of the reporting period.

2.22. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subs‘diary comprises the:

i Fair values of the assets transferred
ii. Liabifities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business
i Equity interests issued by the Group
iv. Fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, and
V. Fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.22. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilittes assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair vatue or at the non-controlling interest’s propertionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
Acquisition-related rosts are expensod a3s incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest inthe acquired entity and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous entity interest in the acquired entity, over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired Is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly In the Income statement as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financia! liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMAYES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group and Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definitlon, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a higher degree of
ludgement or complexity within the next financial year are discussed below.

{a) Capitatisation of develapment costs - (Critical Estimote)

Internatl staff costs associated with the deveiopment of sofiware praducts both for internal use and external sale are
capialised and amortised over the estimated useful life of the product, which is fixed at 3years.  In determining the
staff costs awributable to development, management have to estimate the time spent on each project. The
capdalisation policy is capped at 90% per engineer, per month. This means that in any given manth, a maximum of
90% af an engineer's total labour cost can be capitalised, with a minimum of 10% being expensed through the Income
Statement.

Costs incurred on development projects are recognised as intangible assets only when it is probable that the project
will be a success considering its commercial and technical feasibility.  The project must be intended for completion
and the Company must be able to demanstrate how the asset will generate future economic benefits.

If the Company is unabse to distinguish the research phase of a project from the development phase, the expenditure
for that project wil! be treated as if it were incurred in the research phase only and will not be recognised as an
Intangible asset. Capitalisation ceases and amortisation commences once a product or enhancement is available
for depioyment
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

{b) Fair volue of investments - (Critical Estimate)

For the 2021 reporting year. the value of the investments was calculated based on a detailed fair value analysis
following the acquisition of the Group by Mediaocean LLC. Multiple scenarios and methodclogies were calculated
(including Revenue Allgcations, EBITDA Multipliers and Forecast Benchmarksj to support the valuation.
Management based these calculations on estimated figures (see note 7 for further details). The nature of the
assumption made by management, was that the scenario which provided the best estimate of the market value of
the investments was selected.

Management balieve that the change to a market approach in 2021 from the market/income approach used in 2020,
will provide a more accurate reflection of the value of the Group's investments because the price paid for the Group
is stronger evidence of fair value.

(c) Sales tox ligbility - (Criticol Estimate}

Flashtalking, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Simplicity Marketing Limited, 1s subject to taxation in the United States.
The company provides services 1o customers in various states within the United States, which may create nexus in
those states to collecr sales tax on sales o custamers, The company estimates the related provision for the sales tax
liability based on each state’s laws and revenue. In the current year, the company concluded that it has historically
incurred sales tax expense in jurisdictions where it expected to remit safes tax payments but were not yet colfecting
from customers,

As at 31 December 2021, the carcying amount of this saies tax tiability was $6,750,000 {translated at £5,001.001 at 31
December 2021). The carrying amount of this Eabilty was zero as at 1 January 2021, There were no amounts used in
the period or urused amounts reversed inthe period,  The company is Currently stil completing its analysis, and the
carrying amaunt is the mid-point of the estimated range. The range was developed by management with the help of
3" party tax specialists, reviewing sales tax regulations by state and determining which of the tompany's revenue
streams are taxable in each state. From there, the company calcu'ated an estimated range by taking each state’s
taxable revenue, the sales tax rate, and the lookback peried. The company is still refining its calculation of each taxable
revenue stream and verifying customer billing addresses. The company expects to complete the process and make
the necassary payments to the states by the end of 2023. Changes n tax laws appficable to us, including
interpretations thereof and related accounting standards, could aisg impact the Fability.

Due to the change in the company's ewnership (acquisition of the Group by Med:accean LLC) and the current and
ever-changing interpretation of what is considered taxabie by the states, the company concluded that this 15 a change
in estimate in the current year and not a prior period error and has therefore been accounted for prospectively.

(d) intangible ussets through acguisitions - (Critical Estimate)

intangible assets recognised through acquisitions comprise customer relationships, acquired technology, non-
compete agreements and acquired trade names. The cast of the intangible asset is derived based upon management's
assertions of projected cash flows. These calcuiations require the use of estimates regarding expected future cash
flows to be derived from the asset, revenue growth and EBITDA margin
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group

At 1 January 2020
Cost

Accumulated
anartisative ang
trapairment

Net Book Amount

Yearending 31
December 2021
Opening net hook
amaunt

£xchange differences
Additions
Amortisation charge
Closing Net Book
Amount

At 1 Jaruary 2021
Cost

Accurnulated
senortisatien ang
IMparment

Net Boak Amount

Year ending 31
December 2029
Opeming net book
amount

Exchange differences
Additions

Disposals
Amorusation charga
Amortisation an,
disposals

Clasing Net Book
Amount

At 31 December
201

Cost
Accumulated
amortisation ang
impairment

Net Boak Amount

t
Goodwilt Internally Acquired cus.ome'. Acquired Non- Acquired Total
Relatianship
generated software s Technalogy Compete Trade
software Agreements Names
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

7,867 513 7,681,843 2,841,213 1,468,395 1,067,924 581,076 109,933 21,637,902
{4,818.581) {2.136,616} (386,752) 1720,302) (556,065} (71.314) {8.689.630)
7.887,513 2,863,267 704,507 1,081,643 347,622 25,011 38,619 12,948,272
7,887,513 2,863,267 704,597 1.081.643 347622 25011 38619 12,948,272
{275,708) . (369} 128,938} 6,353 145 718 297,799)
- 3,355,208 - . - - 3,355,208
12,187,695) {398,885} {182.77%; 4330,181) (25,1568  (36.490) 13,161,182)

o o hyanase . e s R e T T N el Harwn o e - O - U epieanansspp i bl
7,611,805 4,030,780 305,343 869,930 23,794 . 2,847 12,844,499
7BB7.513 11,037.056 2,841,213 1.468,395 1,067,924 581,076 109,933 24993110
{275,708)  (7.006,276)  (2,535870) {598,465) 11,044,130} (581.076) (107,086} (12,148,611)
7,611,805 4,030,780 305,343 868,930 23,794 . 2,847 12,844,409
7.611,805 4,033,780 305,343 869,930 23,794 2,847 12 844,459

111,985 - (63 6,989 {62) - &) 118.9M
3,569,989 3,917,494 - 272472 3,327,024 3¢3.393 1333678 12 744,050

- . (35,275) - - - - (35,275)

12,644,346} (152,673) {404,372) 214717) (342,004) (117677 13,675,789

35,275 - - . - 35,275

1,293,779 5,303,928 152,665 745.019 3,136.039 181,389 1,218,842 22,031,661

11,209.75¢ 14,954,550 2,805,386 1,657,934 4334633 871651 1,437,402 37,355,335

. [9,650.622) (2652,721) 912315 11,198,594) 890,262; (228560 (15.323,6741
11,293,779 5,303,928 152,665 745,018 5.136.039 181,389 1,315,842 22.091,661

Amortisation of £3,675,789 (2020: £3,161,182) is included in administrative expenses :n the income statement.
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. INTANGYBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Internally Acquired Total
Company generated software

software

£ £ £

At 1 January 2020
Cost 7,681,848 2,805,386 10,487,234
Accumulated amarusation and impairment (4,818,581) {2,101,163) (6,819,744)
Net Book Amount 2,863,267 704223 3,567,490
Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net ook amount 2,863,267 704,222 3,567,490
Additions 3,355,208 . 3,355,208
Reclassifications - - -
Amortisation charge (2.187,695) (358,885} {2,586,580)
Closing Net Boak Amount 4,030,780 ' 305,338 4,336,118
At 1 January 2021
Caost 11,037,056 2,805,386 13,842,442
Accumulated amortisation and impairment {7.006,2 76} (2,500,048) (9,506,324)
Net Book Amount 4,030,780 305,338 4,336,118
Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net book amount 4,030,780 305,338 4,336,118
Additions 3,917,493 - 3917493
Amortisation charge (2,644,345) (152,673) (2,797.018)
Closing Net Boak Amount 5,303,928 152,665 5,456,593
At 31 December 2021
Cost ) 14,954,549 2,805,386 172,759,935
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (2,650,621) {2,652,721) (12,303,342)
Net Beok Amount 5.303,928 152,665 5,456,593

Amortisation of £2,797,018 (2020: £2,586,580} is included in administrative expenses in the income statement,
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

GROUP

(i} Goodwill breakdown by entity:

31 December 2020

Protected Media

FT1 Gmbh Limited (Israel)} Total
£ £ £ £

AL 1 January 2020 7,743,319 144,194 7,887,513

Foreign exchange mavements (283,625) 7,917 - (275,708}

At 31 December 2020 7.459,694 152,111 - 7,611,805

31 Cecember 2021

Protected
FTI Gmbh Media Limited Total
{Israel}
3 £ £ £

At 1 January 2021 7.459,694 152111 7,611,805
Additions 3,569,989 3,569,989
Foreign exchange movements 89,318 (19,335} 32,802 111,985
At 31 December 2021 7,549,012 141,976 3,602,791 11,293,779

(ii) Impairment test for goodwifl

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. For the 2021 reporting year, the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) was determined based on & detailed fair value analysis
following the acquisition of the Group by Mediaocean LLC. Six different scenarios were tested uslng various
methodologies (including Revenue Allocation, EBITDA Multiples and Forecast Benchmarks) to suppert the

assessment.

The director and management have considered and evaluated reasonable possible changes for key assumptions used
in the analysis and have not identified any instances that could cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable

amcunt.
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES YO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS {CONTINUED)

(iliy tmpairment of internally generated software
The weighted average remaining amortisation period of the product development Is 33 months {2020: 33 months). In
the year, research and development expenditure of £3,917,494 (2020: £3,355,208) was capitalised.

As at 31 December 2021, there were product development assets of £Nil (2020: £Nil) which are currently under
development and are not yet ready for use. The amortisation of these assets had not started as at 31 December 2021.

Management has identified one CGU. The Group represents the lowest level at which the related assets are monitored
for internal managemerit purpases.

The Group tests whether internally generated software has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. For the 2021
reporting year, the recoverable smount of the cash generating unit (CGU) was determined based on a detailed fair
value analysis following the acquisition of the Group by Mediaocean LLC.  Six different scenarios were tésted using
various methodologies {including Revenue Allocation, EBITDA Multiples and Forecast Benchmarks) to support the
assessment,

Thedirector and management have considered and avaluated reasonable possible changes for key assumptions used
in the analysis and have not identified any instances that could cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable
arnount.

{iv) Acquired software
The weighted average remaining amortisation period of acquired software is 24 months (2020: 24 months).

During 2021, the Group made software purchases of ENil {2020: ENil). Acquired software products have an estimated
useful life of between 12 months and three years.

The Group tests whether acquired software has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. For the 2021 reporting
year, the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) was determined based en a detailed fair value analysis
following the acquisition of the Group by Mediaocean LLC. Six different scenarios were tested using various
methodologies (including Revenue Allocation, EBITDA Multiples and Forecast Benchmarks) to support the
assessment.

The director and management have considered and evalvated reasonable possible changes for key assumptions used
in the analysis and have not identified any instances that could cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable
amount.
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold Fixtures and Computer Total
Group .

property fittings equipment

£ £ £ £

At 1 January 2020
Cost 353.00% 254,925 3,660,969 4,268,503
Accurnulated depreciation {330.949) {150.209) {2,721,458) (3.242,612)
Closing Net Book Amount 22,060 £4,720 939,511 1,026,291
Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net book amownd 22,060 64,720 939,511 1.026,291
Exchange differences 120 (365) 2,660 2415
Additions - 1.056 555,256 556,312
Depreciation charge {12,301) (33,269} (716,028) [761.598)
Closing Net Book Amount 9879 32142 781,399 823,420
At 1 January 2021
Cast 353.009 255,981 4,216,225 4,825,215
Accumnulated depreceation . 1343730)  (223839)  (3434826) (4,001,795
Closing Net Book Amount 9,879 32,142 781.399 823,420
Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net book amount 9,879 32142 781,399 823,420
Assers acquired In business combination . 12,870 3,834 16,704
Exchange differences 157} 128 (3,331} {3.260)
Additons . 486 745,399 748,885
Disposals . (62,827} (62.827)
Depreciation charge (6,542} (9,238) (727,029) (742,809)
Accumutated depreciation on disposals o - - bz 62827
Closing Net Book Amount 3,280 36388 804,272 §43.940
At 31 Decernber 2021
Cost 346,071 263,768 4,885,508 5495,347
Accumnulated depreciation . (342,791) (227,380) {4081,236)  (4.651.407)
Net Book Amount 3,280 36,388 £804,272 843,940

Depreciation of £1,723,552 (2020: £2,095,950} has been charged in administrative expenses in the income
statement. This includes the depreciation of Right-of-use assets (note €) for an amount of £980,742 (2020
£1,334,352).

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257 3.



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Leasehold Fixtures and Computer Total
Company . s

property fittings equipment

£ £ £ £

At 1 january 2020
Cost 230,162 29,524 2,650,502 2,910,188
Accumulated depreciation (222114} (28,470) (1,949,557} (2.200,141)
Closing Net Book Amount 8,048 1,054 700,945 710,047
Year ending 31 December 2020
Opening net book amount 8,048 1.054 700,945 710.047
Additions - 475,792 475,792
DGepreciation charge (2.640) (323} {548,297) 551,260)
Closing Net Book Amount 5,408 731 628,440 634,579
At 1]anuary 2021
Cost 230,162 29,524 3,126,294 3,385,980
Accumulated depreciation (224.754) {28,793 (2497,854)  {2.751.401)
Closing Net Book Amount 5,408 731 628,440 634,579
Year ending 31 December 2021
Opening net hook amount 5.408 31 628,440 634,579
Additions . 544,285 544,285
Depreciatian charge (2,295} {111} (556,106} (558,512)
Closing Net Book Amount 3113 620 616,619 620,352
At 31 December 2021
Cost 230,162 29,524 3670,579 3,930,265
Accumutated depreciation (227,049 (28904) 13.052,960) (3309913
Net Book Amount 3,113 520 516,619 520,352

Depreciation of £980,246 (2020: £990,000) has been charged in administrative expenses in the income statement.
This inciudes the depreqiation of Right-of-use assets (Note 6) for an amount of £421,734 {2020: £438,740),
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t DECEMBER 2021

6. LEASES

{i} Arounts recognised in the batance sheet

The balance sheet shows the foliowing amounts relating to leases:

Group Buildings Vehicles Equipment  Total
Right-of-use assets £ £ £ £
Year ending 31 December
2020
Opeming net book amount 3,418,108 9,743 7472 3435323
Exchange difference 2,254 536 {274) 2516
Additions - 3B,739 38,739
Depreciation charge (1,316.793) {14,654 (2.905) (1.334,352)
Rent review and 12,694 93 12,787
. Prepayment o P ] . . .
Clasing net book amount 2,116,263 34,364 4,386 2,155,013
Year ending 3* December
2021
Opening net book amount 2.116,263 34,364 4,386 2,155,013
Exchange differences (988) 2,290) 33 (3.225)
Aidrtions 368.874 68978 : 375,852
Depreciation charge 1963,240) (14,515} 2987, (980.742)
Rent review and
_prepayment (8.634) {101} 53 (8,682)
Clasing net book amount 1,512,275 24,436 1,505 1,538,216
Lease Liabllities
Year ending 31 December Buildings Vehicles Equipment Total
2020 £ £ £ E
Opening net book amount 3,359,984 9,964 6.626 3,376,574
Exchange differences {59.843) 547 (243) (59,539)
Additions - 38.738 38739
Disposals . - - -
Payments (1,325,593} {15.392) [2.700) {1,343,685)
Interest expense 132,476 745 194 133,416
Rent review and 17,874 . 93 17,967
_Pprepayments
Closing net book amount 2,124,898 34,604 3,970 2,163,472
Year ending 31 December
2021
QOpening net book amount 2124898 34,604 3,970 2,163,472
Exchange differences 9,729 {2,305) 48 7.472
Additions 368,873 6,979 - 375,852
Payment (1,080,696} {15489 (2,786) (1.098,971)
Interest expense £8,390 1,333 107 89,830
Rent review and {14,483) (85) 53 (14,515)
_prepayments
Clusing net baok amount 1,496,711 25,037 1,392 1,523,140
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

6. LEASES (CONTINUED)

Group 31 December 31 December
2021 2020
£ E
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilty 760,858 1,204,825
Current liakilities
Lease (rability 762,282 §58,647
1,523,140 2.163,472

(it} Ageing analysis of fease commitments

Group 31 December 2021 31 becember 2020
Buildings Other Buildings Other
items items
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non- £ £ £ £

canceliable leases are payable as follows:

Within one year 746,565 15,717 941,364 17,283
Later than one year but not later than fve years 750,146 10712 1,183,533 21,292
1.496,711 26,429 2,124,897 38,573

Company

{iif} Arnounts recogrised in the balance sheet

Right-of-use assets

Year ending 31 December 2020 Buildings
£
Opening net bock amount 1,678,054
Addittons -
Depreciation charge (438,740}
Closing net book amount 1,239,314
Buildings
Year ending 31 December 2021 £
Opening net book amount 1,239,314
Depreciation charge (421,734)
Closing net haok amount 817,580

Lease Liabilities

Year ending 31 December 2020 Buildings

£
Opening net book amount 1,586,306
Additians .
Paymenis {473,256}
Interest expense 76.34C
Mod fications {5.147)
Clesing net book amount 1,184,243
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

6. LEASES (CONTINUED)

the) Amounts recagnised in the halonce sheet (cantinued)

Company
Year ending 31 December 2021 Buildings
£
Gpening net book amount 1,184,243
Payments (473,256)
Interest expense 56,068
Modifications (5.167)
Ciosing net hook amount 761,888
Lease Liabilities
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
£ i £
Nen-current liabilities
Lease Habulity 323.646 767,055
Current liabilities
Lease liability 438,242 417,188
761,888 1,184,243
The falr value of the leases approximates to the values shown above.
(1) Ageing andlysis of lease commitments 31 December 2021 31 Decerber 2020
Company
Buildings Other Buildings Other
items items
Commitments for minimum |ease payments in relation to non- £ £ £ £
cancellable leases are payable as folows:
Within one year 438,242 . 417,188
Lates than one year but not later than five years 323,646 - 767,055
761,888 - 1,184,243
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

6. LEASES {CONTINUED)
(v} Atnounts recogmsed in the Income Statement

The statement of profit or Joss shows the following amounis relatng to leases:

Group
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Deprectation charge of rght-of-use assets: £ £
Buildings 963,240 1,316,793
Vehicles 14,515 14,654
.Equipment , 2,987 2,905
Taotal depreciation crﬂs_e 580,742 1,334,352

Interest expense (:nciuded in finance costs) £89,830 (2020: £133,416)

Total cash outflows for leases for the Group in 2021 was £1,098,971 (2020: £1,343 685)

Company
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Depreciation charge of nght of use assets: £ £
Bulldings 421,734 438,740
Total depreciation charge 421,734 438,740

Interest expense (included in finance costs) £56,068 (2020: £75,340)

Total cash outflows for leases for the Company in 2021 was £473,256 (2020: £473,256).
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

7. INVESTMENTS

INVESTMENT IN OTHER
SUBSIDIARIES RESERVES
£ £
Balance at 1 January 2020 38,741,708 30,034,195
Bonus issve of shares 28.200,000)
Foreign exchange adjustments 9,002 -
Gain recognised in other comprehensive income 4,323,495 4,323,495
Balance at 31 December 2020 43,074,205 6,157,650
Investment in Protected Media Limited (131 a€l) LRI IV :
foreign exchange adjustments 86.703 -
Gain recognised in other comprehensive income 249,636,659 249,636,659
301,115,277 255,794,349

Balance at 31 Dacember 2021

The Company has investments in the fol’owing subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2021:

Company name

Ordinary Shares

MNature of Activity

Registered Office

Flashtalking ing,

Spongecel! Inc,

100%

100% (subsidiary of
Flashtalk:ng Inc.)

Internet advertising

Internet advertising

142 W. 36th Street, 10th Floor, New York, NY

10018, USA

142 W, 36th Screet, 10th Floor, New York, NY

10018, USA

Flashtalking GmbH 100% Internet advert:sing  Schanzenstralle 35, 51063 Cologne, Germany
’ . Studio 6, 8 Hercules Street, Surry Hills, Sytdney

Flashtalking Pty Ltd 100% Internet advertsing NSW 2010, Australia

Flashtalking Brasit L 448, Conj 82 B Portaria 454, Rua Rego Freitas.

Marketing Ltda 100% Internet advertising Replublica, Sao Paulo, 01220-010, Brazi

Flashtalking Pte Ltd 100% Internet advertising 135 Cecil Street, #10-01, S'ngapore, 069536

Protected Media 100% Advertising fraud 12 Halapid Street. Petah Tikve, Israei

Lirnited {Israel) detection specialists

100% {subsidiary of
Protected Media Ltd
(Israel})

50 Washington Street, FLL.11,5T 1101,
Narwalk, CT, 06854, USA

Advertising fraud

Pr Media Inc. .
otected Media Inc detection specialists
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7. INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED}

Gain in investments
in February 2021, Simplicity Marketing Limited acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Protected Media Limited
{tsrael}.  See note 11 for further details.

In August 2021, Mediaocean LLC completed the acquisition of the Flash Topco Limited Group.  £91,581,908 was
received by Simplicity Marketing Lirmited as capital contrioution from Flash Bidco Limited. This was split £43,478,441
te repay the external borrowing and £48,103,467 to settle other expenditure including the share based payments..
The £91,581,908 is not expected to be repaid and has therefore been treated as capital contribution.

£249,636,559 of the increase in investments in the year relates to the annual fair value adjustment (see fair Valuation
Measurement below for details), with the remaining £86,703 relating to exchange movements in investments held in
foreign currency.

Valuation method
In 1 January 2020, there was a change in accounting policy.  The Group and Company commenced accounting for
investments in accordance with 1AS 39 and IFRS 13 under the fair value method of accounting.

The change in policy from the cost model to the fair value model is considered to provide more relevant and reliable
information for users of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 by more accurately
reflecting the value of the Company's irvestments. The change provides the Company with greater flexibility when
managing capital, including debt and equity funding and shareholders returns.

The fair vatue adjustment in 2020 was inrelation to a change in accounting policy from historic cost less impairment
o the fair value method. itwas measured at the reclassification date of 1st January 2021 and applied retrospectively.
The difference between the amortised cost and the fair value was measured at 1 January 2019, with the difference
between them recognised in the revaluation reserve.

This was also measured at 31 December 2018, 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 with the balance at these
dates recognised as other comprehensive income.

The Group has classified investments as Level 2 {2020 - Level 3), as prescribed by IFRS 13, 'The investmenits held by
the Group are of the same industry, characteristics and risks, as each entity operates under the same trading business
structure.  Therefore, management believe that the reclassification of investments from Level 3 to Level 2 is correct
and disciosure of each individual investment is not required.

Eair valuation measurement

For the 2021 reparting year, the value of the investments was calculated based on a detailed fair value analysis
following the acquisition of the Flashtalking Group by Mediaocean LLC.  Multiple scenarios were calculated using
various methadologies (including Revenue Allocation, Forecast Benchmarks and £BITDA Multipliers} to support the
valuation.  From this analysis, management selected the scenario which provided the most accurate estimate of the
fair value of the investrments held by Simplicity Marketing Limited at 31 Decernber 2021,

To calculate the valuation of the investments held by Simplicity Marketing Limited, the value of the Company had to
be deducted from the total valuation of the group headed by Flash Topco Limited. The value of the group headed by
Flash Tepce Limited was estimated using the purchase price paid by Mediaocean LLC. The scenario selected to value
the Company, was based on an EBITDA Multiplier approach using a combination of both management data and data
produced by an independent 3'¢ party valuation specialist.  The calculation involved using an tmplied multiple of
14.3x applied to the average estimated annual EBITDA for the Company over the three years 2021 to 2023. The 14.9x
multiple was calculated by dividing the purchase price paid by Medlaocean LLC to acquire the Group, by the average
estimated annual EBITDA for the Group over the three years 2021 to 2023.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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7. INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The rationale behind choosing this method was because it is the standard valuation technique ordinarily performed
by companies and allows comparability with the rest of the market. 1t also provided the greatest transparency and
integrity in terms of the data set used because it involved both internal and external data sources.  Managementare
confident that the valuation calculated was the most balanced and fair valuation available and censistent with their
understanding of the business.

The fair value of investments were measured at the reclassification date of 31 December 2020 and were applied
retrospectively. The difference between the amortised cost and the fair value was measured at 1 January 2019, with
the difference between them recognised in the revaluation reserve. This was also measured at 31 Decernber 2019
and 31 December 2020 with the balance at these dates recognised as other comprehensive income.

In 2020, in order to provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining the fair value, the
Group classified investments as Level 3 due to the inclusicn of unobservable inputs, as prescribed by IFRS 13, Alevel
3 classification is determined where one or more of the significant inputs is not based on cbservable market data,
such is the case for unlisted equity securities. The Growp used an income approach as the valuation technigue to
determine the fair value of the investment, with the use of a discounted cash flow analysis.

{f) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 2)

The investments in subsidiaries table above represents the level 2 (2020 - Level 3) items for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020. ’

(ii} Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

In assessing the fair market value at 31 December 2020, both the market approach and income approach were
adapted with a 50% weighting applied to each. The income approach was based on a discounted cash flow
methodology, the key inputs which you wilt find outlined below. In terms of the market approach, guideline public
company method has been adapted. A 2.75x multiple was applied to the last twelve months ("LTM") revenue with a
2.5x multiple applied to the next twelve months ("NTM") revenue. A weighting of 50% was then applied to both LTM
and NTM to arrive at a weighted business enterprise value.

Changes in the fair value of investments will be analysed and re-measured on a recurring basis at the end of each
reparting period, with movements in the fair value impacting other camprehensive income.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

8. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group 31 December 31 becember
2021 2920
£ £

Trade receivables 21,595,465 20,118,081
Less: provision for impairment {543,845} (424,070}
Trade receivables - net 20,951,620 19,694,011
Amgunts owed by group undertakings 40,806,874
Prepayments 957.243 372,011
Accrued income 235628 143,828
Other receivables 262,983 68,856

63,214,348 20,278,706
Company 31 D;;::nber 3 O;E;lc"nber

£ £

Trade receivables 1,748 688 1649668
Less: provision for imparment 0.475) (163.879)
Trade receivables - net 1458213 1,485,790
Amounts owed by group undentakings 51.023,503 23,273,672
Prepayments 721,402 223,798
Arcrued income 144,309 98,525
Other receivables 266.288 148,698

53,813,715 25,130,483

The fair value of trade receivables approximates to the values shown above. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hoid
collateral as security. Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable upon demand.

Trade receivables incldes £672,024 (2020; £411,237) falling due after more than six months. The Group has made a
provision for receivables of £643,845 (2020: £424,070) due from tustemers, the collectability of which is in doubt.

Other receivables comprise costs paid on behalf of Flashtalking Singapore, security deposits, VAT receivable and
provisions for pass-through costs.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 December
Group

2021 2020
£ £
Cash at bank and in hand 4,654,943 '16.347,686

4,654,943 10,347,686

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents approxsmates to the values shown above.

The Group's currency expasure is set out below. Such exposure comprises the cash and cash equ valents of the Group
that are denominated other than in GBP.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020 these exposures were as follows:

31 December 1 Decemb
Nan-GBP denominated monetary assets De. L 31 December

2021 2020
£ £
us dollar 2,861,925 7,696,128
Euro B43,047 1,748,748
Australian dollar 476,322 503,843
Brazilian real 14,804 102
Singapere doflar 4,867 2,930
Israeli Sheket 214,421 -
Tatal non-GBP 4,415,386 9,951,798

31Decemher 31 December

Company 2021 2020
£ £
Cash at bank and in hand o 1EehS514 SMSQSEQQ )
1,255,514 5,698,909

The Company’s currency exposure is set out below. Such exposure comprises the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group that are denominated other than in GBP. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020 these exposures were as fallows:

Non-GBP denominated monetary assets 31 December 31 December

2021 2020
E £
US dohar 842,457 4,207,567
Euro 175587 1215915
Total non-GBP 1,018,044 5,423,432
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

10. BORROWINGS

Group and
Company

31 December 2021

_31 December 2020

" Current  Non-current  Total Current Non-current Total
£ £_ £ 45 o £ £ —
Term loan facility 428731 32,004,318 32,433,049
Asset backed loan 11315495  11,315.495
facility
Prepaid loan fees . (352.3186) (352,316}
Total borrowings - - 428,731 42,967,497 43,386,228
At 31 December 2020 Lessthana Hetween 1and 2 Between 2 Over5 Total i
year years and 5 years years

£ £ £ £ £
Term loan faciliy 428,711 - 32,004,318 - 32,433,049
Asset backed [oan fagility . - 11,315,495 11,315,495
Prepsid loan fees - (352,316} - (352316}
Total borrowings 428,731 {352,316} 43,319,813 - 43,394,228

During the year, the Group were acquired by Mediaocean LLC. Upon acquisition, Mediaccean repaid all outstanding
external debt within the Flashtalking group of companies.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

11. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

in February 2021, Simplicity Marketing Limited (a 100% subsidiary of Flash Bidco Limited) acquired 100% of the
issued share capital of Protected Media Limited. Headquartered in Israel, Pratected Media is a global feader in ad
fraud prevention and detection.  Protectied Media's product sulte compliments those provided by Flashtalking and
the acquisition has simplified the ad tech stack for customers by including verification services with ad serving
globally. The successful integration of Protected Media has created opportunities to cross sell across existing dient
bases and enabled the Company to expand into a different part of the ecosystem.

Details of the purchase considerat.on, the net assets acquired, and goodwill are as follows:

Purchase consideration £
Cach pad 3,226,455
Shares and warrants 1,251,203
Contingent consideration 3,840.052
Total purchase consideration 8,317,710

The fair value of the 580,857 81 shares 1ssued as part of the consideration paid for Protected Media Ltd was based on
the valuation performed of Flash Topco Limited as of 31 December 2020 wh.ch resulted in a value of £1.87 per share.
The fair value of the 375,000 warrants was based on a weighted value of £0.44 per warrant.

An earn-gut arrangement was also entered into at the date of acquisition, with a $1,000,000 change of control
provision, up to $7,500,000 cash and up to 505,583 shares in Flash Topco Limited. At the date of acquisition the fair
market value of the Company's shares was £1.87.  The earn-out is dependent on the revenue generated and based
an the first and second anniversary checkpoints.

The assets and labilines recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

Fair value £

Plant and equipment 16,704
Deferred tax assets 6.381
Trade and other receivables 515,506
Cash and cash equivalents 281,263
Trade and other payables (1,328.700)
Net Identifiable liabilities acquired (508,846)
Add Fair value £
Customer relationships 272,472
Acquired technglogy 3,327,024
Non-compete agreements 323,393
Acquired trade names 1,333,678
Goodwill 3,569,989
Net assets acquired 8,312,710

Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary was as follows:

E

Cash pald 3,226,455
Less: Cash balances acquired (281,263)
Net outflow of cash 2,945,192

Acquisition related costs totalling £3,180,592 are included in administrative expenses in the income Statement and in
operating cashflows in the Statement Of Cash Flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

12. CONTINGENT AND DEFERRED CONSIDERATION

CONTINGENT
Group and
Company 31 DECEMBER 2021 31 DECEMBER 2020
Current Nen-current Total Current Non-current Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Due 1niess than 3355515 ) 3355515
i year
Due between 1 } 261,789 2611789 i i .
and 2 years
Total contingent 5 354 gqg 2,611,789 5,967,304 . - .
cansideration
DEFERREL
Group and
Company 31 OECEMBER 2021 31 DECEMBER 2020
Current MNon-current Total Current Non-current Tatal
£ £ £ £ £ £
Cue in less than
1 year
Due between 1 . 1676563 1076663
and 2 years .
Total deferred N . } ) 1,076.663 1,076,663

consideratian

The fair value of contingent and deferred considerations approximates to the values shown above.

Encore Media Metrics LLC
In November 2015, Simplicity Marketing Limited purchased the assets of Encore Media Metrics LLC, a US based

company. The aggregate cansideration for the purchase comprised of $350,000 in cash at the time of purchase, a
deferred payment and a contingent performance payment of $100.000.

The deferred payment becomes due in the event of a sale of the Company and consists of $500,000 cash plus the
equivalent of the fair market value of 460,000 B Ordinary Shares of the Company on the date of sale which has been
reduced by 80,000 shares in 2018 due to the performance obligation not being met during the year.  £2,305,165 was
paid in September 2021 to fully settle the deferred consideration liability, an completion of the sale of the Company
to Mediaocean LLC.
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

12, CONTINGENT AND DEFERRED CONSIDERATION (CONTINUED)

Pr g Limil Isry

In February 2021, Simplicity Marketing Limited acquired Protected Media Limited {Israel), an Israell based company.
The consideration paid for the acquisitipn consisted of a mix of cash and shares. The consideration at close was made
up of $4,500,000 cash, 580,857 B shares in Flash Topco Limited and 375,000 warrants with a weighted value of £0.44
per warrant.

An earn-out arrangemert was also entered into at the date of acquisition, with a $1,000,000 change of control
provision, up to $7,500,000 cash and up to 505,583 shares in Flash Topco Limited. The earn-out is dependent on the
revenue generated and based on the first and second anniversary checkpoints.

In September 2021, the $1,000,000 change of control provision was paid as a result of the sale of the Company to
Mediaocean LLC. The estimated total earn-cut was recalculated as $8,054,249 (translated at £5,967,304 at 31
December 2021). This includes a cash substitution of $3,553,597 for the 505,583 shares in Flash Topro Limited, at a
price of $7.03 per share.

In May 2022, $4,528,972 of the total estimated earn-out was paid, of which $1,998,587 related to the cash substituticn
mentioned above. The amount paid was calculated based on the revenue achieved at the first anniversary checkpeint,
in accordance with the earn-out agreement,

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 December 31 December

Group 2021 2020

£ £
Trade payables 1,942,579 1,746,366
Ameunts owed to group undertakings 8,555,737 939,154
Accruals 9,309,897 6,518,358
Social security and other taxes 509,156 1,103,655

20,317,369 10,307,533

31 December 31 December

Company 2021 2020

£ £
Trade payables 1,148,505 1,420,844
Amounts awed ta group undertakings 1.417,078 13,461,788
Aceruals 1.121,697 1589015
Soclal security and other taxes 241,603 22413
Deferred revenue 50.255 . 73902

3,979,138 16,770,262

The fair values of trade and other payables approximate to the values show above. Amounts owed to group
undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

14. INCOME TAX

(1) INCOME TAX

31 December 31 December
Current tax

2021 2020
£ . £

Corporation tax for the year 1,365,854 1030573
Adjustments in respect of current and prior
periods 77,929 (130.034}
Foreign tax for the year 176,242 1,768,249
Total current tax 1,620,065 2,668,788
Deferred tax
Recagnition of deferred tax asset/liability and
utdisation of deferred tax asset/liability 6:971.967) 508,256
Adyustments in respect of prior peniods 1,083 32130
Income tax (tredit)/charge {5,350.819) 3,209,234

31 December
Factors affecting current tax credit 31December ¢

2021 2020
£ £
(Lp;s)!Profu before intome tax {after deducting (11.584.742) 8 859,328
dividend income)
{Loss)/ Profit before income tax at the standard rate (2.201.191) 1,683,272

of tax 1n the United Kingdom of 19% (2020: 19%}
Recognition of deferred tax asset/iability (6.918,930) 198,132
Utilisation of deferred tax asset/hability recognised

- (53,038) 310,125
at acquisition
Expenses not deductible 2,265,114 68,730
Group relisf {129,391) (43,067}
Difference in tax rates on overseas earnings 1,607515 1,089.887
Adlpslmenrs in respect of current and prior 75,012 (97.845)
periods
Total tax (credit)/charge {5,350,815) 3,209,234

The tax assessed an the profit on ordinary activities for the year is lower (2020: higher) than the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2020: 19%).

The Group earns its profits primarily in the UK. Therefore, the tax rate used for tax on profit on ordinary activities is
the standard rate far UK corporation tax, currently 19%.

The Group's overseas tax rates are higher than those in the UK, primarily because the prefits earned in the United
States of America are taxed at a federal rate of 21% and addstional state taxes are payable.
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14. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
(11) DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
The movermnent in the deferred taxation provision during the year was:

31 December 31 December

Group 2021 2020

£ £
Pravisinn hrought farward 1,125,213 1,003,080
Increase in prowision cfiue to excess of taxation 237.991 280,159
allowances over depreciation on fixed assets
Decrease in provision due to amortisation of

4

acquired intangible assels in the period (53.038) (144.039)
Net exchange differences 2,845 (13.987)
Provision carried forward 1,313,011 1,125.213

31 December 31 December

Company 2021 2020

£ £
Provision brought forward 887,622 607.463
Increase in provision qug to excess of taxation 237,991 280,153
allowances over depreciation on fixed assets
Provision carried forward 1,125,613 887,622

The Group's provision for deferred taxation consists of the tax effect of timing differences in respect of:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Group Provided Unprovided Provided Unprovided
B ) £ ) £ £
Excess of taxation allowances over depreciation on 1125613 i RE7.622
fixed assels
Exces_s of_taxauon allowances over amortsation on 187,398 X 237.591
acquired intangible assets ] ! . ‘ ‘
1,313,011 - 1,725,213 -

The Group expects to settle £45,893 (2020 - £52,410) in no more than twelve manths after the reporting period, and
£1,267,118 {2020 - £1,072,803) in more than twelve manths after the reporting period.

The Compgany's provision for deferred taxation consists of the tax effect of timing differences in respect of:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Company Provided Unprovided Provided Unprovided
£ £ £ £
;:zzs;;f;ta:anon allowances over depreciation on 1126613 . §87.622 )
1,125,613 . as7622
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

14, INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(l1l) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
31 December

37 December

Group 2021 2020

£ £
Prior year capital losses carried forward as a resut

1

of acquisitians 2223819 2,718,058
Capl(af tax losses generated/(utiised) duning the 7,096,619 1454.163)
period
Increase in provision due to timing d-fferences 60,301 82,027
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (1.083} {321390)
Capiial tax losses acquired during the perwod 6,38t -
Netexchange differences 23,396 (89,913}
Total deferred tax assets 9,409,433 2,223,819

The Groug expects to settle £4,483,356 (2020 - £452,576) in nc more than twelve months after the report.ng period,
and £4,926,077 {2020 - £1,771,243) in more than twelve months after the report:ng period.

The Group's provision for deferred taxation consists of the tax effect of timing differences in respect of:

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

Group Provided Unprovided Provided Unprovided
£ £ £ .. £

Tax losses 9,080,380 1,953,983

Mavement in provision due to timing differences 236,457 176,155

Adjustments i respect of prior periods N 92,596 $3.680 .
9,409,433 2,223,819 -

31 December

31 December

Company 2021 2020
£ i
Provision brought forward 269,836 216,959
Increase in provision due to timing differences 60,30 82,027
Adjustments in respect of prior periods {1,083) (32,150)
Tota! deferred tax assets 329,054 269,836
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15. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Group and Company
Allotted, called up and fully paid:

No. of shares Nomlnal Share
Value premium

£ £
As at 31 December 2020:
Qrdinary shares at £0.00001 13,300,000 133 -
Qrdinary shares at £0.00001 28200010 282 -
Total shares as af 11" December 2020 41500010 415
Shares at 31** December 2021
Qrdinary shares at £0.00001 13,300,000 133
Ordinary shares at £0.00001 28,200,010 282
Total shares as at 31 December 2021 41,500,010 - as -

16. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Group and Company $hara Option and Grant Plans

Under the 2013, 2015, 2015 and 2017 Share Option and Grant sthemes, the Group has issued options over ordsnary
shares tc certain employees of the Group. The vesting of all options is subject to continued employment.

A reconciliation of option Movements over the year to December is shown below,

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Number WAEP £ Number WAEP £
Seffta"d'"g at the beginning of the 4 512067 0.94 9,657,067 0.93
Granted during the year 330,000 511 130,000 1.88
Cancelled during the year (9.962,067) 5.11 - -
Forfeited during the year (80,000) 1.20 {115,000) 1.07
Qutstanding at the end of the year - - 9,712,067 0.94

In the year ended 31 Decernber 2021, all share options were cancelled as a result of the acquisition by Mediaocean
LLC (2020: Nane),

As a result of the cancellation of the share options, an accelerated charge of £995,245 was recognised in the Income
Statement during the year. All share options were cancelled at $7.03 price per share. The excess between the

exercise price and the share price was transferred to retained earnings.

The share-based payment charge for share option schemes for the year ended 31 December 2021 is £995,245 (2020
- £596,888).

There are no outstanding share options at 31 December 2021.
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17. OTHER RESERVES

Group

Balance brought forward at 1 January 2020
Profit for the year

Exchange differences on retranslation of net assets of

subsidiary undertakings

Recognivon of equ ty settled share-based payments in the

year
Capital reduttion - tancelfation of ardinary shares
Capital reduction - cancellation of share premium

Bonuys issue of shares at £

Cap-al reductian - reduction in norminal vawe from 1 1o

£0.00007

Cap tal reduction - reductien in share prem-um
Cumulative translation adarstrment

Dwidends

Balance at 31 December 2020

Lass for the year

Other comprehensive expense

Share based scheme charge

Capital contribution from Medwaocean LLC
Share based scherne changes

Dividends paid
Balanc¢e carried forward at 31 December 2021

Company

Balance brought forward at 1 January 202¢

Profit for the year
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments
inthe year

Capital reduciion = cancelation of ordlnary shares
Capital reduction - cancellation of share premium
Bonus issue of shares

Capitai rédugtion - canceifation of share premium
Fair value gain recognised on investments
Dividends

Balance at 31 December 2020

Loss for the year

Fair value gainrecognised on investments

Capital cantribution from Mediaocean LLC

Share based scheme charge

Share based scheme changes

Dividends paid

Balance carried forward at 31 Decemher 2021

Share capital Share option Capital Other Retained
and share reserve contribution reserves earnings
premium

£ £ £ £ £
8,765.462 6,830,352 - 1576105 16163781
: . 5650004
{645,113) -
596,838 - - .
(999,989} - - 999,989
(7,765,330) - 7,765,330
28,200,000 - - (28,200,000}
37872 - - (37.872)
(28,237,600 - 28,237,600
(10,087}
- (48,777 618)
415 7.427,240 - 127,267,068} 9,991,217
- (6,233,923}
1533062 -
995245 .
- . 91,581,908 .
(8.422.485) - 7.369.59¢
415 . 91,58‘i,§705k7 ‘ (-2:;;60‘ 3—0)“ -
Share capital and Share option Capital Other Retained
share premium reserve contribution Reserves earnings
£ £ £ £ £

8,765,462 345,685 30,034,195 13,047,472

. ' 5,039,299
- 51806 .

{999,588} . 399,989
(7.727.458) - 7,727,458
28,200,000 (28,200,000) -

[28,237,600) - - 28,237,800
4,323,495 -
- - - {48.777.618)
‘407,494 . 6.157.690 10,274,200
(4,662,461)
. 249,636,659
- 91,581,308 - -
22,357
E (429.848)
- - - (1.886,723)
T s - 1,581,908 255,754,349 3,725,016

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

Company number 04339257

.56 .



SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

17. OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Other reserves - Group
Other reserves refate to cumulative translation adjustments, these being a function of translating the balance sheets

and summarising the gains and losses upon translation,

Other reserves - Company
Other reserves relates ta the fair value gains and losses recognised on investments.

18. REVENUE

The Group has companies in the United Kingdom, the Linited States of America, Germany, Singapore, Austral:a, Braz:i
and lsrael. An analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical region is given below:

31December 31 December

Group 2021 2020
United Kingdorm 7.589,315 6,455,110
UsA 50,003,535 50,581,174
Germany 3,785,360 4,002,274
Australia 2,050,042 1,347,029
Brazil 16,948 6,048
Israel 3,229,708 -

66,767,908 62,391,635
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

19. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Group 31 December 3% December

2021 2020
£ £
Empioyee benefit expense (see Note 20) 40,505,541 33,650,597
Hostng 6,610,136 6,193,980
Operating lease costs, including office leases 40,340 17,103
Travel and entertainment 140,088 504,927
Consultants and contractors 1,730,841 970.211
Establ:shment costs 1.878,250 1,840,059
Professional fees 8,903,583 1,930,167
Amortisation - product development 2,644,346 2,187,696
Amgrtisation - acquired 1A B7R.770 574,601
Amortisation - software 152.673 398.885
Other employee related costs 129,829 108,682
Depreciation 1,723.552 2,095950
Marketing and advertising 645.816 397.831
Auditors/consultancy remuneration
as auditors 252,159 108,000
- lax complhiance services 166,485 306,631
-So0c 2 - 147,894
Potential acquisition advice 109,360 :
-Sale advice 577.060 .
-Accounting advice 26,833 111,56%
Bad debt exgense 121,208 82,765
Unrealized FX gain (185,745) [1.658.482)
Saftware licenses 373,709 311,228
Data casts 224,875 84,556
Far ‘ value. loss on  contingent and deferred 2,805 808 )
considerations
Sales tax lisbility 5.001,001 .
Release of prepaid loan fees 341,343 139,669
Cther expense 1,108,001 439,976
76,909,862 50,945,486

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
Disclosed as: £ £
Cost of sales 8,950,411 7,559,976
Selling and marketing costs 8.161.552 £,725.232
Administratve expenses 35,310,811 12,794,339
Technical support and develcpment 24,487,088 23,865,939

76,909,862 50,845,486

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
£ £
Finance income and finance costs
Interest on revolving faditity loan 1444713 2,587,925
Other interest expense - -
Interest incame on bank depasus 1,325) (1,104)
1,442,788 2,586,821
SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMSBER 2021

20, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

31 December 31 December

Group 2021 2020

£ £
Wages and saiarres 36,025,191 29.908.107
Social security costs 2589435 2.431,253
Other pension costs 895,670° 714,349
Equity settled share-based payments 995,245 59¢6.888
Total 40,505,541 33,650,557
Company 31 December 31 December

2021 2020

£ E
Wages and salaries 9.516,194 9.870,854
Social security costs 600,325 628330
Other pension casts 383,906 382932
Equity settied share-based payments 22.357 61,806 -
Total 10,522,782 10,943,922

The monthly average number of people employed by the Group during the year analysed by category was as follows:

Group 2021 2020
Number tNumber
Selling ang marketing costs 76 63
Administrative expenses 89 3
Technicat support and development 155 145
Total 324 299

The total number of peopie employed by the Group at 21 December 2021 was 321 (2020: 305).

The monthly average number of people employed by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 was 70
(2020: 72) and the total number of people employed by the Company at 31 December 2021 was 69 (2020: 71).

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
Company number 04339257
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

20. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Director's remuneration - Group
31 December

11 December
2020
£

453,916

453,916

2021
£
Remuneratian recevable 2,022,976
2,022,976
Remuneration of highest paid director:
Totaf.remuneranon (exciuding pension 2,022,976
contributions)

453,916

thrector’s remuneration was paid through Flashtatking inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of 5implicity Marketing Limited
only. There was no remuneration paid through the Company in the financial years ended 31 Decemnber 2021 or 31

December 2020,

in the year ended 31 December 2021, all of the director’s share oprions were cancelled as a result of the acquisition

by Mediaocean LLC (2020: None).

The number of directors whao accrued benefits under company pension schemes was as follows:

2020
Number

2020
£

2021

Number
Defined contribution schemes 1
2021
£
Shart term benefits (including remuneration} £2,037,100
Share opuons £978.300
£3,015,400

£466,697

£466,697

Shart-term benefits were paid by Flashtalking Inc., a whaoily owned subsidiary of Simplicity Marketing Limited onwy.
There were no short-term benefits paid through the Company m the financ-al year ended 31 December 2021 or 31

December 2020,

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

21. CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Group

Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Operating {Loss)/Prafit

Adjustrnents for:
Bepreciation - property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation - right of use asset
Amartisation
Non-cash past-employment benefits - share
hased payments
Net exchange differences
Fair value loss on contingent and deferred
considerations

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in trade debtors
increase in (rade creditors
(Decrease)/Increase in ether cperating
fiabiities

Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Company

Cash (used In)/generated from operations

Operating (Loss)/Profit

Adjustments for:
Depreciation - property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation - right of use assets
Amortisation
Non-cash post-employrment benefits - share
based payments
Net exchange differences
Fair value loss on contingent and deferred
considerations

Change in operating assets and liabllities;
Increase in trade debtors
iDecrease)/increase intrade ¢reditors
Increase inother operating liabilties

Cash {used in}/generated from operations

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
|3 £

(1(3,141,954) 11,446,149
742,809 761,598
980,742 1,334,352
3,675,789 3,161,182
595,245 596,888
{185,745) (1.909.107)
2,809,808 -
{43,496,795) {1.322,314)
13.008,426 1,559,741
{1.232,835) 126,682
(35.844,510) 15,755,171

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£ £

{1.595.750 8,337,079
558,512 551,260
421,734 438,740
2797.018 2,586,580
22,357 61,806
(37.272} {2,141,250)
2,809,808 -
(28,457,975) (3,660,554)
(12.635,108) 3,690,581
{1.232,835) 126,682
{37,349,511) 9,981,924
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SIMPLIOITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

22, EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

The Group has identified items which are material due to the significance of the nature and/or amount. These are
listed separately below in order to provide a better understanding of the financial performance of the Group,

Note 3 31
December December
2021 2020

£ £
Acqursition costs (aj 3,180,592 271,327
Refinancing costs (b) 441,687 440,453
Stamp duty and Tax services (3] 41,747 118,835
Sale costs (d) 14,080,839 .
Sales tax (=) 5,001,001 -
Total 22,745,866 820,609

(o) Acquisition costs
in 2020 there were gcquisiticn costs in relation to advice received on the purchase of Flashtalking Brasil Marketing
Ltda.

In 2021 there were acquisition costs in relation to the purchase of Protected Media Limited {Israel). This included
professional advice received, contingent consideration adjustments and ‘ntegration expenditure,

(b} Refinancing costs
This expense is regarding the refinancing arrangement which took plate across the Group in 2021, and prior. The
expense is In relation to the fee charged in order to amend the finante facilities and the legal advice received in
relation to the refinancing and the share buyback which tecok place in 2020.

e Stamp ducy and Tax
In 2020 there were costs incurred for stamp duty payable on the dividends during the year and tax advice received in
relation to Flashtalking Brasil Marketing Ltda and refinancing.

In 2021, there were costs incurred for tax advice in relation to the issue of management incentive units and transfer
pricing.

fa) Safe costs
In 2021, there were costs incurred in relation to the sale of Flash Topco Limited to Mediaocean LLC. This included
professional advice received. share based payments, contingent consideration payments and integration
expenditure.

(e} Sales tax
In the current year, the Group concluded that it has histarically incurred sales tax expense in jurisdictions where it

expected to remit sales tax payments but were not yet collecting from customers. As at 31 December 2021, the
carrying amount of this sales tax liability was $6,750,000. See note 3 for further detals.

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

GROUP AND COMPANY

During 2021, the following refated party transaction tack plate in the Company (2020: $7,500):
{A) Purchase of Services from individual who is 2 clase member of key management Personnel:

Transaction value for the year ended  Balance outstanding as at 31
31 December 2023 December 2021

Services provided in relation to the
developrment of reporung application USD 1,000 uso -

The above amount was included in expenses in the Income Statement and was fuily paid at the year end.

Transaction value for the year ended  Balance autstanding as at 31
31 December 2020 December 2020

Services provided in relation to the
development of reporting application USD 7,500 USD 7,500

This transaction was for USD $7,500 (translated at £5,507 at 31 December 2020) stil outstanding ta be paid at the
previous year-end and included in the 2020 Income Statement. The amount was fully pa:d on 8" January 2021.

24, CONTINGENCIES

The Group is engaged in litigation arising :n the normal course of its business. Managernent does not believe that any
such litigation would impact the Group to any material extent, and that the possibility of any outflow in settlement is
remote.

25, COMMITMENTS

The Group leases various offices, etc. under nen-cancellable operating leases expiring within 6 months to 8 years. The
leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

From 1 january 2019, in accordance with [FRS 16, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets for these leases, except
for short-term leases and low-value leases.

Commitments far minimum lease paymenits in relation to non-canceliable operating leases for 2021 were £nil (2020:
£nil)

SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED
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SIMPLICITY MARKETING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

26. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The immediate parent company is Flash Bidco Limited, a company incorporated in England and Wales.

Consolidated financal statements for the {argest group within the Flashtalking group of companies are compiled by
Flash Topco Limited. a company incorporated in England and Wales. Simplicity Marketing Limited prepares
consolidated financial statements for the smallest group within the Flashtalking group of companies.

Copies of the Flash Topco Limited consolidated financial statements can be obtained from Companies House. Copies
of Simplicity Marketing Limited consoiidated financial statements can be obtained atthe company’'s business address:
Blue Fin Building, 110 Southwark Street, SE1 0TA, London, United Kingdom,

The ultimate parant and controlling party is Oceankey (U.5.) ! Carp., a limited liability company in the United States
af America.

27. COMPANY ONLY INCOME STATEMENT

The Company has elerted to take the exempt:on under section 408 cf the Companies Act 2006 not to present the
company income statement.

28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Adjusting events

Based upon managernents evaluation, it was determined that ne subsequent events occurred that require recognit.on
or disclosure in the financial statemenits.
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